
  1 

 

Agenda 

 
Contact Officer: Emily Barry, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Tel: 07717 272442 
 

 

E-mail: emily.barry@southandvale.gov.uk 
 
Date: 18 September 2023 
 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Planning Committee 

 

WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 7.00 PM 
 

MEETING ROOM 1, ABBEY HOUSE, ABBEY CLOSE, ABINGDON, OX14 3JE 
 

You can watch this meeting the council's YouTube channel.   
 

 
 

Members of the Committee: 

Max Thompson (Chair) 

Val Shaw (Vice-Chair) 
Ron Batstone 
Cheryl Briggs 
 

Jenny Hannaby 
Diana Lugova 
Robert Maddison 
 

Mike Pighills 
Jill Rayner 
 

 
Substitutes Councillors 

Paul Barrow, Dr 
Andy Cooke 
Hayleigh Gascoigne 
Emily Smith 

Robert Clegg 
Lucy Edwards 
Oliver Forder 
Katherine Foxhall 

Scott Houghton 
Sarah James 
Viral Patel 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this 
agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

1.  Chair's announcements   
 

To receive any announcements from the chair, and general housekeeping matters. 

 
2.  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
3.  Minutes (Pages 4 - 9) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the 
meeting held on 16 August 2023.   
 
4.  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, other registrable interests 
and non-registrable interests or any conflicts of interest in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

 
5.  Urgent business   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.   
 
6.  Public participation   

 
To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.   

 
 

Planning applications 
 

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (e.g.within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports 
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working 
file) and referenced by its application number.  These are available to view at the 
Council Offices (Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE) during normal 
office hours. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  3 

 

 

 
Summary index of applications 

 

 Site Address Proposal Application No Page. 

 
     
7.  P23/V1093/HH - 

39 Wootton 
Village, Boars 
Hill, Oxford, 
OX1 5HP   

Proposed driveway/dropped kerb. (As 
amplified by additional information 
received 22 June 2023) 

P23/V1093/HH 10 - 22 

 

     
8.  P23/V0667/RM - 

Parcel 1P, Land 
to the west of 
Great Western 
Park (Valley 
Park), Didcot   

Reserved Matters submission relating 
to phase 1P pursuant to outline 
planning permission P14/V2873/O, 
comprising 172 dwellings with 
associated infrastructure and 
landscaping.  
 
(Outline planning application for a 
residential development of up to 
4,254 dwellings, mixed use local 
centres, primary schools, sports 
pitches, community and leisure 
facilities, special needs school, open 
space and extensive green 
infrastructure, hard and soft 
landscaping, attenuation areas, 
diversions to public rights of way, 
pedestrian and vehicular access and 
associated works) 

P23/V0667/RM 23 - 56 

 

 
 



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Planning Committee 

 
held on Wednesday, 16 August 2023 at 7.00 pm in 
Meeting Room 1, Abbey House, Abbey Close, 
Abingdon, OX14 3JE 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
Councillors: Val Shaw (Vice-Chair – in the chair), Ron Batstone, Cheryl Briggs, Robert 
Clegg, Jenny Hannaby, Diana Lugova, Robert Maddison, Mike Pighills, and Emily Smith 
Officers: Darius Zarazel (Democratic Services Officer), Paula Fox (Development 
Manager), and Kerry Street (Planning Officer) 
 

Remote attendance: 
Officers: Bertie Smith (Broadcasting Officer) and Abbie Barnes (Planning Officer) 
 
 

33 Chair's announcements  
 

The vice-chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and outlined the meeting 
procedure to be followed. She also explained the emergency evacuation procedure. 

 
34 Apologies for absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Max Thompson (chair), who 
was substituted for Councillor Robert Clegg, and Councillor Jill Rayner, who was 
substituted for Councillor Emily Smith. 

 
35 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meetings held on 26 July 2023 as correct 
records and agree that the Chair sign these as such. 

 
36 Declarations of interest  
 

Councillor Val Shaw declared an interest in item 8 on the agenda due to application 
P23/V1093/HH being in her ward and so she would not take part in the debate or 
vote on this application. 

 
37 Urgent business  
 

There was no urgent business. 
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

38 Public participation  
 

The committee noted the list of the members of the public who had registered to 
speak at the meeting. 

 
39 P21/V3520/FUL - 3-7 Marlborough Street, Faringdon, SN7 7JE  
 

The committee considered planning application P21/V3520/FUL for the 
redevelopment of an existing redundant site for mixed-use residential and retail 
development, including the provision of parking, refuse and cycle storage and 
associated works following partial demolition of the existing retail unit, as amended 
by: (additional and amended information received 28 February 2022), (additional and 
amended information received 22 November 2022 to revise site layout in respect of 
bins, cycle parking, pedestrian access and turning provision and provide PRA ), 
(amended elevation plan rec 5 Dec 2022), (amended plans rec 19 Dec 2022 revising 
car and cycle parking and providing bin presentation point), (additional bat surveys 
received 16 June 2023), on land at 3-7 Marlborough Street, Faringdon.    
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   
 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the application was 
brought to the committee as the Vale of White Horse District Council owneds the land 
to the rear of the site (Southampton Street Car Park).  
 
The planning officer informed the committee that the site was located in Faringdon 
town centre and within the Faringdon Conservation Area. The site also fronted onto 
Marlborough Street to the north-west and Southampton Street Car Park to the south-
east. In addition, the committee was informed that there were several grade II listed 
buildings near the site: the Roman Catholic Church of Blessed Hugh and St Thomas 
to the sSouth-wWest, the Corn Exchange and former Savings Bank across 
Marlborough Street to the north, and the Red Lion former public house adjoining the 
site to the north-east. 
 
The planning officer also noted that the frontage of the site onto Marlborough Street 
was a pair of 19th century town houses with a single-story link, in which one was 
occupied by Costa Coffee and the other was formerly occupied by Budgens, and the 
rear was enclosed and developed into retail space but was currently unused.  
  
It was also noted that a previous scheme was approved in 2020 which accepted the 
principal of development due to the reduced floor space for retail which was believed 
to increase the viability of future retail occupants and in turn enhance the town. The 
dwellings were also sighted further away from grade II listed church in the current 
application than in the previously approved one. Due to these amendments, the 
conservation officer viewed the present scheme as being better than the previously 
approved application.   
 
As the application would provide seven new flats, the proposed car parking provision 
of 14 spaces was confirmed by the planning officer to be in compliance with the 
parking standards. The planning officer also highlighted a correction to the report as 
point 5.26 should read ‘14 unallocated car parking spaces’, not 15.  
 

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

On the character and design of the development, the planning officer informed the 
committee that it was officer’s opinion that the application would be in keeping with 
the surrounding area as it would be traditional in appearance and so respond 
appropriately to the Faringdon Conservation Area. She also informed the committee 
that confirmation about the use of materials was proposed as a recommended 
condition on approval of the application.  
 
Overall, the planning officer confirmed that the application complied with the local 
and neighbourhood plans, would provide additional residential dwellings in the town 
centre, utilise a brownfield site, include new and existing retail, whilst making them 
the site more viable in current economic climate, conserve and enhance the 
conservation area, and not damage nearby listed buildings or neighbouring amenity. 
For all those reasons, the planning officer recommend the application be approved. 
 
 
Councillor Mike Wise spoke on behalf of Faringdon Town Council, in support of the 
application.   
 
Johnathan Headland, the agent representing the applicant, and Gene Webb, spoke 
in support of the application.   
 
 
The committee inquired into the carbon reduction and biodiversity features of the 
scheme and the planning officer confirmed that solar panels were proposed in the 
application as well as the use of gas- free heating and hot water. On biodiversity, she 
also noted that the application would achieve biodiversity net gain and that there 
were conditions on approval which required bird and bat boxes to be provided on 
site.  
 
On a question about the potential for rear access for delivery lorries, the planning 
officer clarified that deliveries for the retail units were currently done via Marlborough 
Street. However, due to the proposed access improvements and the provision of a 
lorry turning point within the site which would allow them to leave onto Marlborough 
Street facing forward, she believed that the application would be an improvement to 
the current situation.  
 
Members then asked about if there was a lack of parking provision for the retail 
workers. In response, the planning officer highlighted to the committee that the retail 
units proposed were reduced significantly in size and that, as the site was in a very 
sustainable location due to the close proximity of public transport links and the car 
park to the rear, Oxfordshire County Council highways had raised no objection on 
those grounds as they did not believe dedicated parking for those workers was 
required.  
 
Overall, as the committee were was satisfied with the planning officer’s response to 
their questions and that the application would be a positive redevelopment of a 
brownfield site in the conservation area, would enhance the street scene, deliver 
additional dwellings to bring more vitality to the town centre, and was a large 
improvement on the original scheme, they it was agreed that the application should 
be approved subject to conditions.  
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was carried on being put 
to the vote.   

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

RESOLVED: to approve planning application P21/V3520/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:  

 
Standard: 
1. Commencement within three years 
2. Approved plans list 

 
Pre-commencement: 
3. Sample materials to be submitted 
4. Schedule of external repairs and alterations to retained building to be submitted 
5. Surface water drainage scheme to be submitted 
6. Foul water drainage scheme to be submitted 
7. Construction Traffic Management Plan to be submitted 
8. Archaeological Watching Brief and Written Scheme of Investigation to be 
submitted 
9. Refuse and recycling details to be submitted 
10. Landscaping scheme to be submitted (and implemented) 
11. Contamination land phased risk assessment to be submitted 
12. Biodiversity strategy to be submitted 
13. Details of balcony screening to be submitted 

 
Pre-occupation: 
14. Access and visibility splays provided in accordance with plans 
15. Turning area provided in accordance with plans 
16. Car parking provided in accordance with plans 
17. Cycle parking provided in accordance with plans 
18. Contamination validation report to be submitted 

 
Compliance: 
19. No gates to be erected at the site access/within 10m of highway 
20. Implementation of programme of archaeological works 

 
40 P23/V1093/HH - 39 Wootton Village, Boars Hill, Oxford, OX1 5HP  
 

As the acting chair, Councillor Val Shaw, stood down from the committee for this item 
as she was the local ward member, the committee held an election for a chair.  

 
RESOLVED: that in the absence of the chair and vice-chair, Councillor Mike Pighills 
be elected as chair.  

 
 

The committee considered planning application P23/V1093/HH for the proposed 
driveway / dropped kerb, (as amplified by additional information received 22 June 
2023), on land at 39 Wootton Village, Boars Hill, Oxford.    
 
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance, and the site’s planning history 
were detailed in the officer’s report, which formed part of the agenda pack for the 
meeting.   
 
The planning officer introduced the report and highlighted that the application was 
called into the committee by the local ward member, Councillor Val Shaw.  
 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

The planning officer informed the committee that the application was for an additional 
access for one of the two detached dwellings approved in 2021 on the west side of 
Wootton Village Road. 
 
In response to the original objection from Oxfordshire County Council highways, a 
vision splays plan was submitted. When reconsulted, highways removed their 
objection subject to conditions but noted that the nearby conifer tree would need to 
be regularly maintained.  
 
The planning officer informed the committee that although the access would remove 
some greenspace, area of verge to the north and south would remain, as well as the 
recently planted tree. In addition, as she believed that the application would not harm 
the appearance of the area or neighbouring amenity, and that as highways had no 
objection, she recommended the application be approved.  
 
 
Councillor Gerardine Quaghebeur spoke on behalf of Wootton Parish Council, 
objecting to the application.   
 
Councillor Val Shaw, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.   
 
 
The committee asked about the representations from Oxfordshire County Council 
highways and what the reasons were behind the change from their initial objection. In 
response, the planning officer confirmed that when the applicant submitted additional 
information around visibility splays, although it did not cover all the points they raised, 
highways were no longer able to maintain an objection. Members noted the position 
of highways and that as the land of proposed driveway belonged to them, and as 
they had no objection, they had given permission for the application. However, the 
committee maintained concerned about some of the points detailed in highways first 
representation and felt that they were not addressed.  
 
When asked about how many other driveways on the road had a similar access, the 
planning officer confirmed there were several such accesses in both directions along 
the road.  
 
The committee also inquired into the potential loss of street parking for school pick up 
and drop off, but they accepted the input from the planning officer that street parking 
was not a material planning consideration for the application as there was no 
allocated parking for school pickup and drop off that would be affected by the 
application, so it could not be protected for that use.  
 
Members discussed the area around the site and weighed up the planning balance 
between providing the access and the potential loss of amenity, greenspace, and the 
impact on pedestrians. They also noted that the site was unique from other points 
along the road due to the green verge and that only some of the verge to the north 
and south would be kept if the application were to be approved.  
 
Members then inquired into how enforceable the turning area, noted in the current 
plan, would be and how the council could ensure that it would not be used as another 
parking space. In response, the planning officer confirmed that there were conditions 
on the application to ensure the use of the land as approved and that if this was not 

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes - Wednesday, 16 August 2023 

used as a turning space in practice it could be subject to enforcement action. 
However, it was also noted that this was not material to the current application. 
 
Although some members believed that, as highways had no objection, the application 
should be approved, the committee maintained concerned that the application would 
have safety implications for the people walking from the school and that there would 
be a loss of green amenity space. For these reasons, members did not vote to 
approve the application.  
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was not carried on being 
put to the vote.   
 
Overall, the committee agreed that there was not enough information on the access, 
erosion of the greenspace, and about the loss of amenity to make a decision on the 
application. Therefore, they agreed that the application should be deferred in order 
for a site visit to take place where the highways officer could be present to walk 
members through the site.  
 
A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application in order to carry out a site 
visit with highways officers present was carried on being put to the vote.   
 
RESOLVED: to defer application P23/V1093/HH in order for a site visit to take place, 
with Oxfordshire County Council Highways officers present. 

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.05 pm 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P23/V1093/HH 
 SITE 39 Wootton Village Boars Hill Oxford, OX1 5HP 
 PARISH WOOTTON 
 PROPOSAL Proposed driveway / dropped kerb. (As 

amplified by additional information received 22 
June 2023) 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Val Shaw 
 APPLICANT Mr Paul Mansbridge 
 OFFICER Emily Hamerton (Kerry Street) 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 

Planning Permission is granted, subject to the following conditions: 
  
 Standard: 

1.  Commencement within three years  
2.  Approved plans list  
 
Compliance: 
3.  Access, parking and turning in accordance with approved plan 
 
Informative: 
4.  Works within the Highway 
5.  Works within the vicinity of the Highway Tree 
6.  Neighbourhood Plan policies 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 This application is referred to committee following a call in from Councillor Val 

Shaw.  The application was deferred at the meeting on 16 August for a site 
visit with attendance from Oxfordshire County Council Highways.   
 

1.2 The application site is one of two detached dwellings approved in 2021 
(P21/V1164/FUL) located to the west side of Wootton Village Road. The site is 
within the Oxford Green Belt and an area of archaeological interest, Wootton 
historic core. 
 

1.3 This application seeks planning permission for the installation of a new 
dropped kerb and driveway. This will provide a dedicated access for the 
dwelling while the existing access will be retained for use by the other house. 
 

1.4 Additional information in the form of an access statement has been received 
during the application process following initial concerns raised by the 
Oxfordshire County Council Highways Team. 
 

1.5 A site location plan is provided over the page, and the application plans are 
attached at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P23/V1093/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 
 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the latest responses received from consultees and third parties 

to the application is below. Full responses received can be viewed online 
at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

Wootton Parish Council  Second consultation 
No comments received 
 
First Consultation  
Object  

- Additional driveway will cause danger to 
children walking to/from the near by 
school. 

- The proposal reduces the already limited 
on street parking available for parents. 
collecting children from the school by car 

- The verge was available for residents to 
sit until the developer removed the 
bench which had been in this location for 
25+ years - the community is in the 
process of installing a replacement 
bench on this land. 

- A new tree has been planted by OCC on 
this land as part of the Green Canopy 
project - the roots may be affected by 
this installation. 
 

Oxfordshire County Council 
Highway Authority 

Second consultation 
No objection subject to a condition and 
informative being imposed 
 
First consultation 

Page 11

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

Object 
- The creation of this driveway and 

dropped kerb will result in a long stretch 
of unprotected footway for school 
children attending the nearby primary 
school. 

- The applicant has not provided visibility 
splays and the driveway will likely result 
in damage to the roots of the tree 
immediately adjacent to the proposals. 

 

County Archaeologist Second consultation 
No further comments 
 
First consultation 
No objection 
 

Residents Second consultation 
Two further letters of representation have been 
received, raising the following concerns: 
 

- The proposal represents a significant 
risk to pedestrians using the footway 

- The lack of visibility, caused by the 
hedge, represents a clear & significant 
risk to joggers, children, people in 
disability scooters etc. using the 
pavement. 

- The site was granted planning 
permission to accommodate two houses 
using the original site access. There is 
no legitimate need to create an 
additional driveway and this application 
appears to be simply for property sale 
value enhancement by the property 
developer as the site nears completion. 

- There is a limited amount of on-street 
parking in close proximity to the school, 
and the creation of this additional and 
unnecessary driveway reduces the 
availability further, which might 
especially impact on those parents of 
children who may have special needs or 
protected characteristics needing to park 
near the school for the purposes of drop-
off or collection. 

- There are already four driveways along 
this short stretch of road. 

  

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

A third letter was also received raising the 
following comments: 
 

- A shared drive with potential movements 
of up to six cars reversing into a 
designated turning area, to ensure cars 
exit forwards, is much more dangerous 
than a single drive which isn’t shared. 

- No car parking space is lost because 
there are car parking spaces on the 
opposite side of the road. 

 

First consultation 
Three letters of representation were received 
raising the following concerns: 
 

- The application site is in very close 
proximity to a primary school and 
therefore this additional driveway 
creates an unnecessary danger to the 
young children walking to and from 
school. 

- The proposed new driveway is closer to 
the bend where there are already safety 
bollards. 

- The proposal reduces the already very 
limited space available for parents to 
park in close proximity to the school. 

- We don’t think another green space 
needs to fall foul of developers when 
there seems adequate provision for a 
driveway within the original plans. 
Historically the piece of land has been 
used by the community, neighbours, 
school families and walkers. 

- The residents of Wootton Village have 
already seen a marked diminution of the 
green space in Wotton Village through 
the felling of the Horse Chestnut tree at 
the start of this building project. 

- This application again reduces this 
green space and erodes the rural 
character of the village by the addition of 
an unnecessary driveway which will 
have to be cut through the existing 
greenspace. 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
3.1 P23/V0723/PD - Advice provided (13/04/2023) 

Dropped kerb 
 
P22/V2093/NM - Approved (11/10/2022) 
Non Material amendment to application P21/V1164/FUL for changes to the 
proposed elevations (minor adjustments to window and door positions). 
 
Demolition existing former British Legion Club house and associated out 
buildings and erection of 2 x 4-Bed dwellings together with garage to plot 1 and 
amenity space 
 
P22/V2087/DIS - Approved (11/10/2022) 
Discharge of condition 5 (Drainage Details - Surface Water) on planning 
application P21/V1164/FUL 
 
Demolition existing former British Legion Club house and associated out 
buildings and erection of 2 x 4-Bed dwellings together with garage to plot 1 and 
amenity space. 
 
P22/V0485/HH - Approved (27/07/2022) 
Convert residential store building into granny annexe / studio flat. 
 
P21/V2873/DIS - Approved (29/11/2021) 
Discharge of conditions 4 (Materials), 5 (Drainage Details (Surface Water)), 6 
(Drainage Details (Foul Water)), 8 (Tree Protection), 15 (Construction Traffic 
Management) & 16 (Unique, General) in application P21/V1164/FUL. 
(confirmation of inclusion of condition 4 by email dated 14 Oct 2021) 
(Amended drg plan rec 09 Nov 2021) 
(Additional information rec 18 Nov 2021) 
(Amended & additional information rec 22 Nov 2021) 
 
Demolition existing former British Legion Club house and associated out 
buildings and erection of 2 x 4-Bed dwellings together with garage to plot 1 and 
amenity space. 
 
P21/V1164/FUL - Approved (11/08/2021) 
Demolition existing former British Legion Club house and associated out 
buildings and erection of 2 x 4-Bed dwellings together with garage to plot 1 and 
amenity space 
(Additional Information rec 12 May 2021) 
(Additional information rec 9 June 2021) 
(Additional information rec 24 June 2021) 
(Amended plans rec 20 July 2021) 
 
P20/V3041/FUL - Other Outcome (12/01/2021) 
Demolition of former British Legion Clubhouse & garage. Erection of 2 x 4-bed 
detached dwellings together with ancillary buildings & amenity space. 
 
P19/V0658/HH - Approved (24/05/2019) 

Page 14

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P23/V0723/PD
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2093/NM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2087/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V0485/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V2873/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P21/V1164/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/V3041/FUL
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/V0658/HH


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

Convert residential store building into granny annex / studio flat 
 
P17/V2845/PEM - Advice provided (15/11/2017) 
Demolition of existing buildings and replacement with two dwellings. 
 
P16/V0969/HH - Approved (23/06/2016) 
Convert residential store building into granny annex / studio flat (resubmission). 
(As amended by plan number BLO -002 Rev A received 15.6.2016, amended 
parking layout) 
 
P09/V0266 - Approved (23/04/2009) 
Erection of detached dwelling and garage with new access off existing 
driveway. 
 
P08/V0525 - Other Outcome (12/05/2008) 
Erection of detached dwelling and garage together with new access off existing 
driveway. Demolition of outbuilding. 
 
P07/V1398 - Approved (26/09/2007) 
Demolition of existing outbuilding. Erection of a detached house and garage 
including formation of new access. 
 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 This application does not fall within the defined scope for potential EIA 

development. 
 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 The main relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 

 The Oxford Green Belt  

 Character and visual amenity 

 Neighbouring amenity 

 Traffic, parking and highway safety 

 Trees 

 Other matters  
 

5.2 The Oxford Green Belt  
Under paragraph 137 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) the 
Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of 
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; 
the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their 
permanence. 

 
5.3 This is further reflected in policy CP13 of LPP1, which list the types of 

development that is acceptable in the Green Belt. Policy SS1.1 of the 
Neighbourhood Plan states the development proposals in the Green Belt will be 
determined against the principles set out in policy CP13 of LPP1.  
 

Page 15

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/V2845/PEM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P16/V0969/HH
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P09/V0266
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P08/V0525
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P07/V1398


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

5.4 In this case, the works involved are for a dropped kerb and additional 
hardstanding. Both the NPPF, at paragraph 150, and LPP1 policy CP13 
confirm that engineering operations are not considered to be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt provided they preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green 
Belt. The proposed works would not compromise the openness of the Green 
Belt and would not conflict with the purposes of including the land within the 
Green Belt. They would therefore comply with Policy CP13 of the LPP1, SS1.1 
of the Neighbourhood Plan and the NPPF.  
 

5.5 Character and visual amenity  
Policies CP37 of LPP1 and DG1 of the Neighbourhood Plan deal with the 
design and visual impact of new development. Policy SS3 of the 
Neighbourhood Plan also deals with Local Green Spaces which are areas 
identified their communities would like to protect. However, in this case, the 
application site does not lie within one of the 7 areas outlined within policy SS3 
of the Neighbourhood Plan. 
 

5.6 The approved dwelling is one of a pair of detached houses being constructed 
with a shared access point onto Wootton Village around 13 metres to the south 
of the proposed access point. The proposed dropped kerb and driveway will 
provide a dedicated access for the dwelling while the existing access will be 
retained for use by the other house.  
 

5.7 The front boundary of the property onto the highway is set back behind a 
triangular shaped grassed area. In front of the grassed area there is a 1.3 
metre wide footway which itself is located behind a 3 metres wide highway 
verge alongside the carriageway.  
 

5.8 The submitted access statement details that the proposed access will be 
constructed as a conventional verge crossover approximately 3.8 metres wide. 
It will be positioned so that its connection with the highway carriageway will 
enable a portion of the highway verge immediately to the north to be retained.  
 

5.9 Officers note that there will be a small loss of green verge, which will be 
replaced with hardstanding. It is also noted that other dwellings in the vicinity 
have dropped kerbs and driveways and as such the insertion of a dropped kerb 
and hard-standing vehicle cross-over would not appear overly prominent or out-
of-place within the street scene. Overall, given the minor reduction of green 
space coupled with the retention of a portion of land to the north, and the other 
examples of this type of development within the locality, it is not considered that 
the proposal would be significantly detrimental to the character and appearance 
of the area.   
 

5.10 Therefore, officers consider the proposal does not cause harm to the character 
and appearance of the surrounding area, consistent with LPP1 Policy CP37, 
Neighbourhood Plan Policy DG1 and the Joint Design Guide SPD. 
 
 
 

Page 16



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

5.11 Neighbouring amenity 
The impact of development on neighbouring properties is controlled by policy 
DP23 of LPP2. This policy requires development proposals to demonstrate that 
they will not result in significant adverse effects on the amenity of neighbours 
from impacts including loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight and dominance or 
visual intrusion, noise or disturbance.  

 
5.12 The proposal contains no built structures and would therefore cause no impact 

on privacy, loss of light or have any effect of dominance towards neighbours. 
The proposal would provide access to 3 parking spaces. Although there may be 
some noise and emissions associated with vehicle movements it is considered 
these would be minimal and no more significant than those associated with the 
approved dwelling previously, and would not have a harmful effect to 
neighbours.  
 

5.13 Therefore, it is considered the proposal would not cause significant harm to the 
amenities of neighbouring or nearby properties and meets the requirements of 
policy DP23. 

 
5.14 Traffic, parking and highway safety 

Policies CP35 and CP37 of LPP1 and policy DP16 of LPP2 deal with access 
and parking. The Oxfordshire County Council Highways Officer has raised no 
objections to the revised information contained within the Access Statement 
received on 22 June 2023. They have provided the below comments: 
 
“The access details, including visibility splays as shown on drawings 23061/101 
Proposed Driveway/Dropped Kerb (within Access Statement) and 544-PL03 
are acceptable. 
 
Appropriate construction method for the proximity of the highway tree can be 
used to mitigate the tree location, taking advice from OCC Arboriculture Team. 
The revised car parking layout, turning space and new vehicular access, as 
shown on drawings 23061/101 
 
Proposed Driveway/Dropped Kerb (within Access Statement) and 544-PL03 
Proposed Site Plan are acceptable and to be in place before first occupation.” 
 

5.15 Officers agree with the Highway Officer’s comments and consider that the 
positioning of the footway 3 metres away from the edge of the carriageway, the 
ample general visibility and the retention of a portion of highway verge 
separating the proposed and existing access points will ensure that the use of 
the footway is safe, and pedestrians will not be placed in a vulnerable position. 
 
Therefore, it is considered the proposed dropped kerb would not affect highway 
safety, consistent with LPP1 policies CP35 and CP37 and LPP2 policy DP16. 
 

5.16 Trees 
To the northern end of the grassed area is a newly planted tree which is 
believed to have been planted by Oxfordshire County Council as part of the 

Page 17



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

Green Canopy Project. The tree is still a very young specimen and has not yet 
achieved any canopy spread. The placement of the driveway ensures that its 
construction would not be within 1.5 metres of the centre of the tree. 

 
5.17 The tree is not within a Conservation Area and is not protected by way of a 

Tree Preservation Order. As such, the tree is not considered to be a constraint 
to the proposed development for planning purposes. An appropriate 
construction method should however be undertaken by the applicant in 
agreement with the County Council Arboricultural Team. This a separate 
matter. An informative has been added to this permission to advise the 
applicant of this. 

 
5.18 Archaeology 

The application site is located within an area of archaeological interest, 
Wootton historic core. Consultation has been undertaken with Oxfordshire 
County Council Archaeology Team, who have confirmed that the proposals 
outlined would not appear to have an invasive impact upon any known 
archaeological sites or features. As such there are no archaeological 
constraints to this scheme and the proposal complies with Policy DP39 of the 
LPP2. 

 
5.19 Other matters   

Concerns have been raised by the Parish Council and local residents with 
regards to the reduction of the already limited available road space for parking, 
which is used by parents collecting children from school by car. These 
comments have been carefully considered and noted. However, the existing on 
road parking available in the area is not allocated for the school and as such, 
cannot be protected for this use. In light of this, it is not considered to be 
reasonable to justify refusal of this application on this basis. 
 

5.20 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
The development is not CIL liable as no additional floorspace is being created.  
 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 On balance, the proposed dropped kerb, crossover and driveway would not 

harm the character and appearance of the area, the openness of the Oxford 
Green Belt, the amenity of neighbouring properties nor highway safety. The 
proposal is therefore considered to comply with the Development Plan, 
particularly policies CP33, CP35, CP37 and CP44 of the adopted Local Plan 
2031 Part 1 and policies DP16 and DP23 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 
2, policies SS1.1 and SS3 of the adopted Neighbourhood Plan, the Joint 
Design Guide 2022 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies: 

 
CP13 - The Oxford Green Belt 

Page 18



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking 
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness 
CP44 - Landscape 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 2 Policies:  
 
DP16 - Access 
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity 
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments 
 
Wootton and St Helen Without Neighbourhood Plan 2019-2031 policies: 
 
SS1.1 - Green Belt 
SS3 - Local Green Space 
DG1 - Design for the area 
DG3.3 - Access 
 
Joint Design Guide 2022 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice 
Guidance 
 
Other legislation  
Equalities Act 2010  
The proposal has been assessed against section 149 of the Equalities Act. It is 
considered that no identified group will suffer discrimination as a result of this 
proposal. 
 
Human Rights Act 1998  
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in 
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report. 
 

 Author: Emily Hamerton (Kerry Street)  
Phone No: 01235 422600  
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

Page 19

mailto:planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


8 10m0 42 6

PLOT 2

3 x Car Parking
Spaces for Plot 2

PLOT 1

TURNING
AREA

Access to Road

GARAGE
2 x Car Parking

Spaces for Plot 1

1m
 high Stone w

all2m High Close boarded fence between properties

41

W
O

O
TT

O
N

 V
IL

LA
G

E

35

NOTE : This drawing is subject to copyright, no portion is to be
used without prior consent. This scheme is subject to Town
Planning, Building Regulations and all other necessary
consents. Dimensions, Areas and levels where given are subject
to a site survey and are to be checked on site prior to
construction.

This project falls under the Construction Design and
Management Regulations 2015 whether domestic or
commercial.
As the client you have specific duties under these regulations.
These duties are a legal requirement.
For information on your responsibilities please go to
www.HSE.gov.uk then CDM Regulations 2015.

Architectural Design ● Project Management ● Construction Consultant

Project:

Drawing Title:

Drawn By: Date:

Scale: Size:

Job / Drawing Number: Revision:

Rev Date Amendments

Client:

Dropped Kerb Application,
39 Wootton Village,
Boars Hill, Oxon, OX1 5HP

Existing Site Plan

1:100

April 2023

A1

544-PL02 -

LKW

P L A N N I N G

Mansbridge And Murray
Developments Limited

39 Hartington Place, Letchworth Garden City, Hertfordshire, SG6 1FA
E: Luke.Kenton@kw-architectural.co.uk - M: 07812 98924

Application Area

N

Appendix 1

P
age 20



8 10m0 42 6

PLOT 2

PLOT 1

TURNING
AREA

Access to Road

GARAGE
2 x Car Parking

Spaces for Plot 1

1m
 high Stone w

all
2m High Close boarded fence between properties

41

W
O

O
TT

O
N

 V
IL

LA
G

E

35

Form new vehicular
access into the siteTURNING

AREA

3 x Car Parking
Spaces for Plot 2

New area of
hardstanding in the
public domain

Existing hedge to be
retained

Existing tree to be
retained

NOTE : This drawing is subject to copyright, no portion is to be
used without prior consent. This scheme is subject to Town
Planning, Building Regulations and all other necessary
consents. Dimensions, Areas and levels where given are subject
to a site survey and are to be checked on site prior to
construction.

This project falls under the Construction Design and
Management Regulations 2015 whether domestic or
commercial.
As the client you have specific duties under these regulations.
These duties are a legal requirement.
For information on your responsibilities please go to
www.HSE.gov.uk then CDM Regulations 2015.

Architectural Design ● Project Management ● Construction Consultant

Project:

Drawing Title:

Drawn By: Date:

Scale: Size:

Job / Drawing Number: Revision:

Rev Date Amendments

Client:

Proposed Site Plan

1:100

November 2022

A1

544-PL03 -

LKW

P L A N N I N G

Mansbridge And Murray
Developments Limited

39 Hartington Place, Letchworth Garden City, Hertfordshire, SG6 1FA
E: Luke.Kenton@kw-architectural.co.uk - M: 07812 98924

Application Area

N

Dropped Kerb Application,
39 Wootton Village,
Boars Hill, Oxon, OX1 5HP

P
age 21



Vale Transport Planning Ltd Page 9 
 
 
 

 

Page 22



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 

 

 APPLICATION NO. P23/V0667/RM 
 SITE Parcel 1P Land to the west of Great Western 

Park (Valley Park) Didcot 
 PARISH HARWELL 
 PROPOSAL Reserved Matters submission relating to phase 

1P pursuant to outline planning permission 
P14/V2873/O, comprising 172 dwellings with 
associated infrastructure and landscaping.  
 
(Outline planning application for a residential 
development of up to 4,254 dwellings, mixed 
use local centres, primary schools, sports 
pitches, community and leisure facilities, special 
needs school, open space and extensive green 
infrastructure, hard and soft landscaping, 
attenuation areas, diversions to public rights of 
way, pedestrian and vehicular access and 
associated works) 

 WARD MEMBER(S) Debra Dewhurst 
Hayleigh Gascoigne 

 APPLICANT Persimmon Homes Wessex Ltd 
 OFFICER Adrian Butler 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

 1. Approved plans 
Pre Commencement Conditions 
2. Provision of tree and Moor Ditch protective fencing  
3. Update the submitted Ecological Construction Management Plan to 

add the construction clerk/management contact details  
 
Pre-Occupancy or Other Stage Conditions 
4. Noise mitigation - Passive ventilation systems and double glazing 

providing 31dB and 25dB attenuation for those residential properties 
fronting the A4130 and northern plots along the spine road 
respectively. Two metre wall on the east boundary of plot 19 and on 
west boundaries of plots 16 and 23, as per the fences & enclosures 
plan  

5. Noise mitigation implementation verification report 
6. Details of proposed materials 
7. Boundary treatments in accordance with approved plans 
8. Vision splays to be provided in accordance with the approved plan 

and thereafter maintained with no structure or vegetation except for 
trees, above 0.9m in height 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P23/V0667/RM


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

9. Cycle parking for each dwelling to be provided prior to occupation of 
each plot 

10. Electric vehicle charging points in accordance with approved plan  
 
Post Occupancy Monitoring and Management Conditions 
11. Permitted development rights removal – extensions, dormer windows, 

outbuildings 
12. Retention of garages for parking 
 
Informatives 

 1. No construction shall take place within 5m of the water main. 
Information detailing how the developer intends to divert the asset / 
align the development, so as to prevent the potential for damage to 
subsurface potable water infrastructure, must be submitted to and 
approved by Thames Water. 

2. Interference with a water main may be an offence under s174 of the 
Water Industry Act 1991. Any work that may require diversion of a 
water  main, works within 5m of a strategic water main or piling 
within 15m of a water main could need the approval of Thames 
Water. 

3. Bird nesting 
4. Broadband provision 
5. Need for a S278 agreement under the Highways Act 
6. It is an offence under S151 of the Highways Act for vehicles to carry 

mud onto roads 
7. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum 

pressure of 10m head (approx. 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 
litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL 
1.1 The application is presented to committee at Chair’s discretion. Since April 

2023 the site is within Western Valley parish. 
 

1.2 This application is located on the wider Valley Park site which benefits from 
outline planning permission for up to 4,254 dwellings granted under application 
no. P14/V2873/O on 21 February 2022. It relates to a first parcel of housing in 
the north western part of the Valley Park site and is shown on the plan 
attached as Appendix 1 and the scheme layout plan attached as Appendix 2. 
 

1.3 Valley Park is not reliant on the HIF1 scheme going ahead. On and off site 
services and infrastructure provision including timing for their delivery which 
will include healthcare provision, schools, cycling and footpath links, public 
open spaces and play areas, community facilities and local centres are 
secured through the S106 agreement associated with the outline planning 
permission. Consequently their provision does not fall to be considered as part 
of this application and this application is not an opportunity to amend 
requirements for their provision. 
 

Page 24



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

1.4 The application seeks approval of reserved matters with these being internal 
access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale. The application has been 
revised following the applicant’s review of planning officer and consultee 
responses with main changes being a reduction in housing numbers from 179 
to 172 dwellings, revised layout, larger gardens, changes to landscaping, 
addressing vision splays at junctions, inclusion of solar panels on roofs and 
provision of 110 bird nesting boxes. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS 
2.1 A summary of the responses received to the current proposal is below. A full 

copy of all the comments made can be seen online at:  
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

Western Valley  
Parish Council 

No objection: 

 Although they still have concerns about the 
level of noise which will be experienced by the 
closest dwellings to the A4130. 

 
Officer response: 
The submitted noise assessment has been reviewed 
by the council’s environmental protection team who 
are satisfied with the proposed mitigation. Mitigation 
includes passive ventilation systems and double 
glazing providing 31dB and 25dB attenuation for 
those residential properties fronting the A4130 and 
northern plots along the spine road respectively but 
this should be extended to all dwellings to ensure 
that all dwellings have reasonable living conditions 
particularly should dualling of the A4130 take place 
as part of HIF1. These measures are required by 
condition 4 in the recommendation above. 
 

Harwell Parish 
Council 

July 2023 Amendments: 
Object: 

 The developer is proceeding as if HIF1 is 
available. Is this permissible? 

 Some infrastructure to serve the site including 
health care, schools and a cycle link to Cow 
Lane, Harwell will not be provided until the 
500th occupation which could be around 5/10 
years. All infrastructure should be delivered 
before homes are occupied.  

 Timing for delivering roundabouts to facilitate 
access to Valley Park should be readdressed 
as it would mean additional traffic through 
Hagbourne and on the A417. 

 Safe walking routes to schools should be 
provided. 

 Question Thames Water advice that water 
and sewage capacity is available given issues 

Page 25

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

at Great Western Park where run off and 
sewage has been problematic. As this site is 
on  a slope there is need to protect the 
A4130. 

 Ask for clarification about road surfacing as 
similar surfacing is already in existence at 
Great Western Park and in some locations 
this has already proved problematic (refuse 
collection not occurring in roads of a certain 
surface). 
 

Officer response: 
Valley Park is not reliant on HIF1 being provided. 
The Valley Park site does safeguard land for 
widening the A4130 and for ‘landing’ the Science 
Bridge and this is secured through the S106 
associated with the Valley Park outline planning 
permission. This proposal does not encroach into 
these areas. 
 
The provision and timings for the delivery of 
infrastructure on Valley Park including healthcare, 
schools, cycle and footways, play areas, sports 
pitches, roundabouts, is all approved and secured 
through the outline planning permission. This 
reserved matters application is not an opportunity to 
revisit these matters.  
 
As mentioned below Thames Water has no objection 
in respect of the sewer network. 
 
Road surfaces will be macadam and brick paviours. 
The council’s waste management team has no 
objection. 

 
Original Comments: 
Object: 

 Houses should not be built until health care 
provision is in place for new residents. 

 Question whether there is adequate school 
provision before new ones are built. 

 Cycling and walking infrastructure must be in 
place to surrounding areas before any 
dwelling is sold to ensure residents are not 
stranded/car dependent. 

 Too many small gardens that do not meet 
guidelines. 

 Density has been increased and could result 
in more than the permitted 4,254 dwellings 
being built on the wider Valley Park site. 

Page 26



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Lack of car parking and unclear whether 
infrastructure will allow residents to be car 
free. 

 Flats sharing EV points could cause conflict 
and unclear who maintains them. 

 A firm commitment to solar provision is 
required. 

 Object to installing gas boilers and this does 
not align with district or County Council 
objectives. 

 Windows on many dwellings are too small. 

 No provision of swift boxes. 

 The north/south footpath on the western side 
of the development should be shared with 
cyclists. 

 The play area should be provided ideally by 
first occupation. 

 Can Thames Water handle the sewage? 
 

Officer response: 
Garden sizes meet requirements in the SDC which 
reflect those in the Design Guide. 
 
Density is in accordance with the parameters set out 
as part of the outline application. Should a developer 
wish to build more than 4,254 dwellings a new 
planning permission would be required.  
 
Car parking accords with OCC standards as 
confirmed by the highway officer. 
 
Each flat has its own parking space with electric 
vehicle charging point (EVCP). EVCP are not 
therefore shared. 
 
Each dwelling is provided with solar panels and 
Persimmon has stated it will provide air source heat 
pumps rather than gas boilers. (Installing gas boilers 
is not development and therefore, we cannot impose 
a condition that gas boilers are not provided). 
 
Windows are a reasonable size. 
 
110 bird boxes for swifts, swallows, house martins, 
sparrows and starlings are proposed and secured 
through the Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
(condition 18 of the outline permission).  
 

Page 27



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

The existing north/south footpath is retained as a 
public footpath and is intended as an informal path to 
protect the biodiversity interest of Moor Ditch. 
 

Milton Parish Council No comments received. 
 

Residents July 2023 Amendments: 
No responses received. 
 
Original Plans: 
Three letters of objection have been received as 
follows: 

 Lack of bird boxes. A condition should require 
1 swift nest box or brick for 80 precent of 
buildings and at suitable heights. 

 Support comments made on design by the 
Crime Prevention Officer and other officers. 

 The application fails to consider dualling the 
A4130 which could make noise levels for 
residents unacceptable contrary to policy 
DP24.  

 Too many plots with rear access through a 
garage for refuse storage which does not 
seem safe and convenient access for 
occupants contrary to policy DP28. 

 Occupants of terraced houses may store bins 
at their fronts as rear bin storage would be 
difficult to manoeuvre to the road side due to 
car ports and parking (GWP spine road is 
blighted by this practice). 

 Question why development is starting as far 
away as possible from existing services with 
no bus services and probably no safe route 
for pedestrians and cyclists to connect to 
Great Western park and Didcot. 

 Cycleways and footpaths should be made 
available prior to occupation to connect with 
facilities such as schools. 

 Other routes in the area should be made safe 
for pedestrians and cyclists such as the 
pavement to the Milton Interchange and 
tunnel into Milton Park. 

 Can Thames Water handle the sewage? 

 Are spaces available in the schools for 
children? 

 No point providing houses if they cannot 
access medical care. 

 Will the developer stop installing gas boilers? 
 

Page 28



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

Drainage Engineer No objection: 

 Full comments on the drainage strategy for 
this parcel cannot be provided until the wider 
drainage infrastructure package has been 
agreed with associated constraints 
incorporated on the plan. We note that further 
information can be provided at discharge of 
condition stage and based on the information 
currently known with regard the wider 
strategy, we would have no objection to the 
reserved matters layout for this phase and 
note that there are locations where additional 
storage can be provided if required. 

 

Thames Water Waste Water: 
No objection: 

 This catchment is subject to high infiltration 
flows during certain groundwater conditions. 
The scale of the proposed development 
doesn’t materially affect the sewer network 
and as such we have no objection. 

Water Comments: 

 Following initial investigations, Thames Water 
has identified existing water network 
infrastructure nearby. 

 Recommend a condition to address this. 
 
Conditions 

 No development shall be occupied until 
confirmation has been provided that either:- 
all water network upgrades required to 
accommodate the additional demand to serve 
the development have been completed or a 
development and infrastructure phasing plan 
has been agreed 
 

Forestry Officer July 2023 Amendments: 
No objection. 

 Previous comments have been addressed.  
 
Condition: 

 Tree protection measures to be implemented 
in accordance with the submitted details. 

 
Original Comments: 

 No objection to the loss of a section of hedge 
and replacement planting as part of a 
landscaping scheme . 

 The layout is designed to protect TPO trees. 

Page 29



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Root protection fencing is required for all trees 
including those that are outside the site but 
which could be affected. 

 The combined services and drainage plans 
show services in the root protection area 
(RPA) of tree T229 which is not acceptable 
and the plans should be revised to avoid this. 

 The levels plans should be amended to show 
proposed levels within the RPA of T229 and 
the protected trees to the south, 
demonstrating that the levels will remain as 
existing within RPAs of the retained trees. 

 

Landscape Officer Original Plans: 
Holding objection: 
 
Boundary Treatments  

 Walls should be used to the parking courts 
and more opportunities should be taken to 
soften these boundaries with planting. 

 Changes in boundary treatment should not be 
prominent on the street scene. Such as 
adjacent to plot 12 parking.  

 The parking of plot 51 is the focus at the end 
of the street, walling should be used in this 
location.  

 Walling should be used at the entrance to the 
apartments plot 131, to plot 136, the current 
proposed fencing will create a poor 
appearance at the end of the street.  

Planting  

 Potential clashes between lighting columns 
and tree planting at Plots 12, 36, 116 and 
122. 

 Street tree species in areas for adoption by 
County Council will need their approval, 
Carpinus betulus Frans Fontaine is proposed 
this is a tree species that County Highways 
have concerns about with regards to adopting 
this species.  

 Sufficient rooting volume has not been 
provided for a number of the proposed street 
trees such as by plot 12, 10.5m2 of rooting 
area is provided which equates 6.5m3 of soil 
volume which is not acceptable. Soil rooting 
volume will need to be provided by 
underground crating, this should be illustrated 
on the plans.  

Page 30



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Over 26% of the tree planting is proposed as 
Carpinus betulus Frans Fontaine this is not 
acceptable in biodiversity and biosecurity 
terms, as covered in the Joint Design Guide. 
More variety in the street tree planting is 
required but the Carpinus betulus Frans 
Fontaine should be replaced with a similar 
taller growing street tree species rather than a 
small growing species.  

 Too much Ligustrum as hedging is proposed 
throughout the site. There needs to be more 
variation of hedging species. For example: a 
different type of hedging to the green around 
the retained tree. This planting should provide 
ornamental planting with species that provide 
seasonal change. Also along the western 
edge of the side, the hedge should provide 
more seasonal interest and biodiversity to the 
eastern side of the Moor Ditch Area. 
Alternative treatment should be provided to 
the parking area of plots 86 to 90, plots 131 to 
133 with more seasonal interest and 
biodiversity is required rather than the 
Ligustrum hedge.  

 Climbers and shrubs should be used to break 
down the mass of boundary treatments 
backing onto parking courts and to add to the 
seasonality, biodiversity of these areas. Such 
as the garden boundaries of plots 14-15 and 
12 where they back onto the parking for plots 
1 to 9.  

 More diversity is required in the proposed 
climber species, just 2 species are proposed.  

 Trees within the Moor Ditch area west of the 
boundary hedging should be larger growing 
species, i.e. it is not appropriate to use a 
street tree such as Pyrus calleryana 
'Chanticleer' in the Moor Ditch area. It is 
difficult to assess the appropriateness of the 
boundary planting proposals of the northern 
and western boundaries without seeing how 
these relate to the adjacent POS/ open space.  

 The street with plots 172 to 197 is very hard, 
look at how this street could be softened. 

 

Countryside Officer Comments: 

 The roadway terminus close to plots 40 and 
109 encroaches into the watercourse buffer 
zone and this roadway should be pulled back 

Page 31



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

to comply with the requirement of condition 26 
of the outline permission. 

 Recommend that a fenced 10 metres 
construction and storage exclusion zone is 
demarcated along the Moor Ditch with 
temporary fencing, to minimise any risk of 
physical damage or pollution during the 
construction phase. 

 The submitted Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
is acceptable. 

 

Air Quality Officer No objection 

 Notes the provision of EV charging. 
 

Contaminated Land 
Officer 
 

No objection. 

Environmental 
Protection Team 
(noise) 

No objection. 

 The proposals outlined for noise mitigation 
are acceptable. 

 The report recommendations, as outlined in 
section 6.16; 6.19 and Figure 6.1, should be 
implemented and prior to the first use of the 
development, a written verification report 
demonstrating the implemented noise 
mitigation measures at required plots, is 
submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 

Housing Team July 2023 Amendments: 
No objection: 

 The submitted updated housing mix 
breakdown demonstrates affordable housing 
units across all phases conforms with the 
overall anticipated affordable housing mix as 
per the S106 agreement, with the applicant 
sufficiently addressing discrepancies 
highlighted previously. 

 Pleased to see that the applicant has reduced 
the quantum of affordable rented units 
proposed as flats, as houses are considered 
more suitable for families needing rented 
accommodation. Where flats have been 
provided, it is pleasing to see that the 
applicant is no longer proposing the provision 
of 2- bedroom flats on 2nd floors or above. 

 Pleased to see individual gardens allocated to 
plots 14 and 15. 

Page 32



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 The distribution of affordable housing 
conforms with the S106 requirement for 
clusters of no more than 15 affordable 
dwellings. 

 There are no allocated parking spaces for plot 
46. Whilst it is assumed that allocated parking 
plot 56 is likely to be allocated to affordable 
plot 46, this should be confirmed by the 
applicant. Parking for plot 13 could be closer 
to the dwelling. 

 
Original Comments: 

 The detailed unit breakdown of affordable 
housing units across all phases, the overall 
affordable housing mix conforms with the 
overall anticipated mix as per the S106 
agreement. 

 There are a few of discrepancies within the 
Housing Delivery Document. The breakdown 
provided within Parcel 6Tc of the phasing plan 
suggests the delivery of 19 affordable rented 
units, with the overall total stating 18. 
Similarly, the breakdown suggests delivery of 
11 shared ownership units, with the overall 
total stating the delivery of 3. Overall totals 
(both tenures) equate to 30 affordable 
housing units, rather than the 20 stated. It is 
advised the applicant clarifies affordable 
housing proposals for this phase.  

 Further, the detailed breakdown provided for 
Parcel XP/T suggests the delivery of 21 
affordable housing units, all for affordable 
rent. However, the total affordable housing 
stated for this phase suggests the delivery of 
31 units. It is advised the applicant clarifies 
affordable housing proposals for this phase. 

 It is noted that over 50% of the affordable 
rented units proposed on this phase are flats. 
This is a high proportion of flats and it is 
advised that the applicant explore possibilities 
of greater provision of houses for affordable 
rent across the site. Where 2-bedroom 
properties are provided, it is preferable that 
these units incorporate 4 persons due to 
eligibility criteria and household requirements. 

 Affordable apartment blocks (1 and 3, as per 
submitted House type and Apartment Packs), 
include a total of seven 2-bedroom flats on 
2nd floors or above. Registered Providers 
generally advise that 2-bedroom flats should 

Page 33



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

not be situated on 2nd floors or above due to 
difficulties surrounding housing management 
and units being hard to let, as they are not 
always suitable family accommodation. 

 Affordable apartment block 6 (plots 14 & 15), 
includes 2 x 1-bedroom flats. For housing 
management purposes, it is preferable that 
the applicant revise plans to deliver these 
units as maisonettes. 

 The submitted Planning Layout (A1P) 
(drawing no. 201.100) indicates communal 
garden space for plots 14 & 15. It is advised 
the applicant explores possibilities of 
providing individually allocated garden space 
for each unit, rather than the current 
communal arrangement. 

 

Crime Prevention 
Officer 

July 2023 Amendments: 
Comments: 

 Pleased to see the changes but has concerns 
as mentioned below: 

 Maintain significant concerns with the 
proposed parking court between plots 29 and 
30, which consists purely of tandem parking 
spaces in a tight space and possibly lacking 
surveillance. This parking arrangement is 
inconvenient for users, particularly when the 
car park is full and the inner car is required by 
the owner – a complex shunting manoeuvre is 
required, which is highly likely to lead to 
vehicles being inappropriately parked on the 
highway instead for convenience. The tight 
nature of this parking area creates a risk of 
vehicle collisions, property damage and 
subsequent neighbour disputes. 

 Highly likely that plot 31 will abandon the 
parking spaces in this parking court in favour 
of parking in the two visitor bays directly 
outside their house. 

 FOG accessed parking courts are left at risk 
of crime and ASB due to being insecure. I ask 
that electronic, fob activated gates are 
provided to prevent unauthorised access to 
private parking areas. 

 Apartment blocks 1, 2 and 3 do not have a 
secure lobby at the ground floor level. 

 Apartment block 3 appears to have mailboxes 
on every level, providing an offender with a 
legitimate excuse to be in a place that they 
shouldn’t. All postal services should be 

Page 34



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

contained within the secure lobby at ground 
floor level. 

 
Original Comments: 
Holding objection: 

 The development is generally well designed 
with defined perimeter blocks and good 
surveillance to reduce opportunities for crime 
and antisocial behaviour to occur. 

 Gates should not be recessed. 

 Horizontal hit and miss, and lap fencing 
should not be used with close boarded 
fencing used instead.. 

 An additional window must be added to 
provide surveillance from dwellings over 
parking for plots 20, 24, 42, 43, 45, 50, 57, 
112, 113, 126, 127, 170. 

 Gates should be provided to courtyard 
parking access beneath a flat over a garage 
(FOG). 

 Tandem parking between plots 29 and 30 is 
tight, inconvenient to users and likely to lead 
to on street parking. (6m which is the space 
required between rows of parking ion a car 
park). 

 The drive through beneath plots 130-136 
could be vulnerable to crime and ASB and 
should be removed. 

 Defensible space landscaping is required e.g. 
at plots 57, 36, 49, 50, 55-56, 127, 146, 148, 
108, 109 

Condition: 

 An application shall be made for Secured by 
Design Silver accreditation and the 
development implemented accordingly. 
 

Urban Design Officer July 2023 Amendments: 
No objection. 

 Previous comments have been addressed 
and there are no key design issues. 

 
Original Comments: 

 Some gardens sizes do not accord with the 
Joint Design Guide minimum requirements. 

 Some off set distances are below the 21m 
back to back Joint Design Guide 
requirements. 

Page 35



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Screen walls should be used around 
apartment block parking courts rather than 
fences. 

 Access to the parking court for an apartment 
building (plots 130-136), is continued into the 
mews street serving plots 137- 147. This 
creates the potential for traffic to use this link 
as a shortcut and would mean vehicular traffic 
using the parking court as a through route. 

 Could support the scheme if the above are 
responded to and mitigated. 

 

Didcot Garden Town 
Team 

Comments: 
Design: 

 The architecture, while not pioneering, will 
potentially endure over time but the spaces in 
between are not well considered and do not 
prioritise green space, although it is 
recognised that the overall proportion of open 
space across the wider Valley Park 
development is reasonable. 

 To an extent the proposal brings technology 
to the forefront by using solar panels and EV 
charging for all homes but it would be good to 
see better links with Science Vale or offer 
science and technology opportunities. 
 

Local Character 

 The proposal retains a small area of open 
green space around a protected tree near the 
centre of the parcel, but otherwise the 
proposal does not identify or protect key 
views.   

 The site is bounded by green space on the 
west and south edges, mostly outside the 
application boundary and links to those 
spaces are reasonably well defined. 

 The streets in the parcel would be relatively 
easy to navigate and with reference to the 
National Model Design Code Part 2 Guidance 
Notes 2021, the plans do provide the required 
compact form of development, appropriate 
building types and forms, consistent building 
heights, and a reasonably consistent 
approach to the building line or street 
frontage.  The mix of materials, for example 
red brick and darkened timber, does reflect 
local character to a certain extent. 

 The parcel includes part of the main street on 
its east boundary, and the Design Compliance 

Page 36



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

Document  shows that the main street will 
include cycle lanes parallel to the road in both 
directions but, once within the parcel, bikes 
will have to share the streets with cars. 
 

Density and Tenure 

 The proposal does not use higher densities to 
allow for more open space and, other than 
back gardens, road verges and the area 
designed around a protected tree, there is no 
open space in the application area.  

 The development only offers 34% affordable 
housing, which does however include 
affordable rented, shared ownership options 
and private homes that may cater for the 
private rented market in Science Vale. There 
is no reference to any specialist 
accommodation. 
 

Transport and Movement 

 The development is not particularly close to 
the main transport hub at Didcot Parkway but 
the plans do include roadside bus stops, at 
least one parking space per house, with EV 
charging and bike storage areas for all. 

 While there are pavements, the road layout 
prioritises cars and there is no evidence of 
encouraging permeable, connected, future-
proofed, multi-modal transport. 
 

Landscape and Green Infrastructure 

 There are no usable open spaces in the 
application area and the landscaped verges 
are clearly subsidiary to the road 
layout.  However there is reasonable access 
to open space corridors west and south of the 
parcel and the Planning Layout plan shows 
block paving paths out to and along both open 
space corridors. 

 The planting plan includes native hedgerows, 
tree planting and reasonable back gardens 
but the verges are predominantly mown grass 
and the parcel does not include multi-
functional green space.  

 The proposals should integrate blue 
infrastructure, which this application does not 
although the parcel is adjacent to SuDS 
‘swales’ and the outline plans include SuDS 
features elsewhere. Verge areas could be 
used as rain gardens. 

Page 37



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Public spaces be well lit, overlooked and 
animated to encourage interaction. The public 
spaces mainly comprise verges and while 
these are well lit they do not encourage 
interaction. There is a strategy for street 
lighting but carefully designed street furniture 
is also needed to encourage use of spaces. 
 

Social and Community Benefits 

 As a result of being for a small parcel within 
the wider development, this application does 
not provide community benefits and there are 
no cultural amenities, recreational facilities, 
shopping or business amenities. However it is 
noted that shopping and community facilities 
are to be provided elsewhere in the 
development. 

 While allotments are also provided elsewhere 
in the wider development, to access the 
nearest one, on the western edge of the wider 
site, requires a journey via the main road.  
Other than back gardens this application does 
not promote local food growing and one 
partial solution to this may be to include fruit 
bearing tree species. 
 

Waste Management 
Officer 

Comments: 

 The bins stores for apartment blocks 1-11, 63-
69, 86-95 and 130-136 are each one bin short 
of requirements. (Officer note: the FOGs have 
their own bin storage and stores. Therefore, 
the bin stores for the flats are correct). 

 Where will bins be stored for FOG’s? 

 Bin collection point discrepancies between 
plans for plots 19, 41 to 44. (Officer note: 
there is no discrepancy). 

 

Oxfordshire County 
Council (OCC) - 
Highways 

September 2023 Response: 
OCC revised its July response to the following: 

 The approved Design Code for the site and 
infrastructure secured by the outline 
permission has been considered. 

 One design issue that has arisen since the 
adoption of the Design Code is with the 7.5m 
width requirement of the shared surface street 
which for adoption now needs an additional 
0.8m width to provide a wider service/margin 
strip. 

 Support the hierarchy of routes for 
pedestrians, cyclists, and low traffic speeds. 

Page 38



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 The future access corridor road to North West 
Valley Park site accords with the Design 
Code. 

 The design speed will need to be supported 
by a Traffic Regulation Order and vision 
splays of 2.4m x 25m provided. There are 
some areas where these vision splays are not 
met for example one area has a 20m vision 
splay. If this vision splay is to be accepted an 
evidence based justification must be provided 
to OCC using appropriate guidance in Manual 
for Streets (MfS). 

 Hedges in vision splays must not exceed 
0.9m in height. 

 Some vison splays shown on the plans are 
incomplete. (Officer note: now corrected). 

 The Road Safety Audit needs to be updated 
(Officer note: now updated (August 2023)). 

 The distance of trees from street lights, their 
set back from roads appear to have been 
addressed. 

 Parking is provided to appropriate standards. 

 The locations of electric charging points 
accords with the Council’s parking standards. 

 Internal garage dimensions meet appropriate 
standards. 

 Cycle parking provision accords with 
standards. 

July 2023 Amendments: 
Comments: 

 Support the hierarchy of routes for 
pedestrians, cyclists, and low traffic speeds. 

 The future access corridor road to North West 
Valley Park site accords with the Design 
Code.  

 The design speed will need to be supported 
by a Traffic Regulation Order and vision 
splays of 2.4m x 25m provided. There are 
some junctions where this is not achieved but 
a 20m vision splay would be acceptable as 
table 7.1 of MfS can allow reduced vision 
splays where vehicle speeds are likely to vary 
between 15mph and 20mph. A reduced vision 
splay of 20mph can be accepted on this 
occasion. 

 Hedges in vision splays must not exceed 
0.9m in height. 

 Some vison splays shown on the plans are 
incomplete. (Officer note: now corrected). 

Page 39



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 The Road Safety Audit needs to be updated 
(Officer note: now updated (August 2023)). 

 The distance of trees from street lights, their 
set back from roads appear to have been 
addressed. 

 Parking is provided to appropriate standards. 

 The locations of electric charging points 
accords with the Council’s parking standards. 

 Internal garage dimensions meet appropriate 
standards. 

 Cycle parking provision accords with 
standards. 
 

Original Comments: 
Comments: 

 The submitted planning statement confirms 
this parcel is provided with clear hierarchy of 
routes for pedestrians, cyclists, and low traffic 
speeds. This approach is fully supported and 
is clearly set out within the approved Valley 
Park Strategic Design Code. 

 Visibility splays at junctions will need to 
accord with the design guidance within 
Manual for Streets (MfS) i.e. an X distance of 
2.4m by a Y distance of 25m.  Having 
reviewed the plans there are some areas 
where such design requirements are not met. 

 Boundary hedges in vision splays must not 
exceed 0.9m in height. 

 Carriageway widths are sufficient for refuse 
vehicles and cars to pass. 

 All proposed trees appear sufficiently distant 
from road sides and street lamp columns. 

 Car parking provision accords with current 
parking standards. 

 Electric vehicle charging point provision 
accords with parking standards. 

 Internal garage dimensions meet 
requirements. 

 Cycle parking provision is adequate 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council - Drainage 

July 2023 Amendments: 
Comment: 

 The current application for plot 1P is in 
accordance with the LLFA's requirements. 
 

Original Plans: 
Holding objection: 

Page 40



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 Inadequate description of the scheme and 
inadequate permeable paving. 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council – 
Archaeologist 
 

No objection 
 

Oxfordshire County 
Council - Education 

No comment necessary as education provision is 
covered by the S106 agreement accompanying the 
outline permission. 

 

 

3.0 
3.1 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
Planning Applications: 

 P22/V2798/DIS – Approved (01/09/2023) 
Partial discharge of condition 10 (Framework Plan) under application reference 
number P14/V2873/O    
 
P22/V2744/RM – Under consideration 
Reserved Matters application relating to Phase 1T of Outline Planning 
Permission P14/V2873/O for scale, layout, landscape and appearance 
comprising 246 new homes with associated infrastructure with 35% affordable 
housing.  

 

P22/V0907/RM - Withdrawn (27/03/2023) 
Reserved Matters submission relating to phase P1 pursuant to outline planning 
permission P14/V2873/O, comprising 161 dwellings with associated 
infrastructure and landscaping. 
 
P22/V2338/DIS - Approved (24/02/2023) 
Discharge of condition 6 (housing delivery document) on application 
P14/V2873/O. 
 
P22/V2407/DIS - Approved (24/02/2023) 
Discharge of condition 11 (Phasing Plan) on application P14/V2873/O. 
 
P22/V2066/DIS - Approved (22/11/2022) 
Discharge of condition 9 (Strategic Design Code) on application P14/V2873/O. 
 
P22/V0604/RM – Under consideration  
Reserved matters application for access, appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale following consent granted under reference P14/V2873/O relating solely to 
Phase 1a of the overall allocation regarding infrastructure elements to enable 
works for Phase 1 and 2.  
  
P14/V2873/O - Approved (21/02/2022) 
Outline planning application for a residential development of up to 4,254 
dwellings, mixed-use local centres, primary schools, sports pitches, community 
and leisure facilities, special needs school, open space and extensive green 
infrastructure, hard and soft landscaping, attenuation areas, diversions to public 
rights of way, pedestrian and vehicular access and associated works 

Page 41

http://sav-intranet.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/jsp/packages/planning/VPA_Summary.jsp?REF=P22/V2798/DIS
http://sav-intranet.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/jsp/packages/planning/VPA_Summary.jsp?REF=P22/V2744/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V0907/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2338/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2407/DIS
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2066/DIS
http://sav-intranet.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/jsp/packages/planning/VPA_Summary.jsp?REF=P22/V0604/RM
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/V2873/O


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 
3.2 Pre-application History 

P22/V2589/PEJ - Advice provided (28/11/2022) 
Reserved matters (layout, appearance, scale and landscaping) application for 
178 dwellings and associated infrastructure pursuant to Outline Planning 
Permission P14/V2873/O (Re-submission of P22/V0907/RM). 

 

4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
4.1 The outline application was subject to an Environmental Statement that 

addressed ecology, landscape and visual, historic environment, flood risk, 
traffic and transport, transport, air quality and climate, noise and vibration, 
agriculture, and community and socio economics. The environmental 
information already provided is considered adequate to assess the significance 
of effects of the development on the environment. This information has been 
taken into consideration in considering this application. 

 
5.0 MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

planning applications to be determined in accordance with the Development 
Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. There is no 
neighbourhood plan for the Western Vale Parish or covering this site, so the 
development plan for this case comprises of the Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031 Part 1 (the LPP1) and the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 
2 (the LPP2).   
 

 The relevant planning considerations are the following: 

 Principle of development 

 The Valley Park Strategic Design Code and Framework Plan 

 The Reserved Matters: 
o Appearance 
o Landscaping 
o Layout 
o Scale 

 Access and parking 

 Housing mix 

 Residential amenity 

 Climate change 

 Biodiversity 

 Drainage 

 Conditions 
 

 
5.2 

Principle of Development 
The site is allocated for housing by the LPP1 and benefits from an extant 
outline planning permission for housing granted under application no. 
P14/V2873/O. The principle of development is therefore, established. The 
outline permission also approved access to the site including a signalised 
junction with the A4130 from which this application site will be served. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 42

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P22/V2589/PEJ


Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 
5.3 
 

The Valley Park Strategic Design Code and Framework Plan 
Policy CP37 of the LPP1 seeks to ensure that all new development is of high-
quality design that, amongst other aspects, should respond positively to the site 
and surroundings and be physically and visually integrated with its 
surroundings. Policy CP44 of the LPP1 seeks to ensure that key features, such 
as trees and hedgerows, that contribute to the nature and quality of the 
landscape will be protected from harmful development and where possible 
enhanced.  
 

5.4 The site is subject to an approved Strategic Design Code (SDC) which the 
development needs to comply with and which was permitted under application 
P22/V2066/DIS, and Framework Plan permitted under application no. 
P22/V2798/DIS. The SDC and Framework Plan accord with design policies 
including Policies CP37, CP38 and CP44 of the LPP1, the Joint Design Guide, 
the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan and NPPF design guidance.  
 

5.5 The SDC defines character areas for the Valley Park site, and the development 
parcel in this Reserved Matters application falls within two areas;  the northeast 
part is part of the ‘Northern Gateway’ character area and the remainder is  part 
of the ‘Northern Residential Neighbourhood’.  
 

5.6 The Northern Gateway (shown on the plan attached at Appendix 3) is to 
provide a definitive arrival point to Didcot along the A4130 being a statement 
feature frontage on to the main access route with built form achieving this 
through high-quality contemporary architecture and a strong urban frontage 
addressing the development edge with increased building heights and massing. 
 

5.7 The Northern Residential Neighbourhood is divided into sub-character areas 
which for this application site include: 

 The central core and hamlets; 

 The core (primary); 

 The core (secondary); and  

 The green edge. 
 
These are shown on the plan attached as Appendix 3 below: 
 

5.8 The Northern Residential Neighbourhood is to be designed to create an 
attractive, welcoming, lively and vibrant character created by a higher density 
urban environment with contemporary influences with housing structured 
around a movement and green infrastructure network. 
 

 The Reserved Matters 
 
5.9 

Appearance 
The Northern Gateway features a four and three storeys building of 
contemporary design thereby providing a statement feature at the site entrance, 
with mass and a strong building line creating enclosure. This is continued 
through the Central Core and Hamlet which fronts the main street leading south 
from the A4130, creating a consistent building line with terraced dwellings and 
flats containing three storeys with feature buildings at street corners defined by 
their height and materials. The dwelling designs provide frontage to the main 

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

street with usable front doors with windows aligning horizontally with vertical 
offsets providing massing and height with pedestrian width gaps between 
buildings to create the enclosure and the strong building line expected. 
Materials are primarily red/brown brick for the walls with some render and grey 
coloured weather boarding used for visual breaks to the street scene and for 
feature buildings, under primarily grey coloured tiled roofs although some 
feature buildings have flat roofs. Metal railings above low brick walls or with 
brick piers and backed by planting define the front boundaries with the tree 
lined main street. 
 

5.10 The Northern Gateway and Central Core and Hamlet transition to the Core 
Primary and Secondary and Green Edge character areas and are 
distinguishable in terms of appearance by using a less formal street hierarchy 
including mews streets, dwellings of lower heights being primarily two storeys 
semi-detached or detached houses and flats above garages (FOGs), with 
predominantly wider spacing between dwellings for parking together with focal 
points and variation in appearance and materials creating an informal 
appearance and softer edge to the development. Dwellings turn corners with 
main windows facing streets. House types have balanced facades with clear 
fronts and backs. Dwellings are simple in form with rectangular footprints and 
pitched roofs with balanced windows with vertical emphasis. Materials are red 
brick with greater use of render and reconstituted stone and roof tiles in ‘red’ or 
grey colours. Front boundaries are mostly defined by hedges with some use of 
metal railings. 

 
5.11 

 
The appearance of the proposals follows the guidance in the approved Valley 
Park SDC and is also compliant with policies CP37 and CP38 of the LPP1. 
 

 
5.12 

Landscaping 
The protected tree on site and those adjacent to the site are retained; the 
protected tree on site forms a focal point in a square in the north western part of 
the development. A condition can ensure tree protection during construction. 
 

5.13 Landscaping has been revised to address the landscape and planning officer 
comments and to aid variance between character areas. For example at the 
western Green Edge, hedge planting is native species with ornamental hedging 
within the Primary and Secondary Cores and Central Core and Hamlets but 
also holly hedging is used. As requested by the landscape officer there are 
fewer Ligustrum (privet) hedges proposed. 
 

5.14 The landscape officer was concerned at the lack of street tree variety being 
largely Carpinus betulus Frans Fontaine (hornbeam). With revisions to the 
landscaping scheme this is addressed with a variety of street trees now 
proposed including flowering cherry, rowan, silver birch and hazel with four 
hornbeam remaining. At the western boundary of the application site, tree 
species have been revised to reflect those recommended in the SDC. Lamp 
posts no longer clash with tree locations and adequate rooting volumes are 
proposed. 
  

Page 44



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

5.15 Walls rather than fences are proposed around the parking areas associated 
with the flats and walls are proposed to define boundaries in the public realm 
including beside parking spaces as recommended by the landscape officer. 
The appearance of walls are softened in the public realm with the use of 
climbing plants and shrubs e.g. honeysuckle and berberis and planting lines the 
western side of mews streets softening their appearance. 
 

5.16 With the landscape officers comments addressed the landscaping scheme is 
considered acceptable and the proposal is compliant with the SDC and Policies 
CP37 and CP44 of the LPP1. 
  

 
5.17 

Layout 
The layout comprises a hierarchy of connected streets with dwellings in 
perimeter blocks with clear fronts and backs. The eastern edge of the 
application site is defined by a main street serving the western part of the wider 
Valley Park site and the development provides a strong and tree lined frontage 
with formal appearance. Secondary roads lead from the main street and in turn 
tertiary roads lead from them including mews streets and finally private drives, 
the private drives enabling lower density development and a softer green edge 
to the development. The mews streets are used to provide rear on plot parking 
for houses fronting the main street thereby avoiding frontage parking and 
courtyard parking which could diminish the scheme. The mews streets 
incorporate flats above garages to provide a frontage and passive surveillance. 
There is no policy requirement for electronic (or manual) gates and it is 
understood Registered Providers are not keen on their provision due to 
maintenance costs. 
 

5.18 Parking courts are to be used as a last resort according to the SDC. It is 
accepted that courtyards of parking for flats are an acceptable exception and 
they are kept to a minimum with these surrounded by walls and including 
planting, and accessed from secondary streets. There is one small courtyard of 
parking which enables housing to form a square around the on-site protected 
tree. This courtyard is overlooked by habitable rooms in plots 28 and 29 as 
requested by the Crime Prevention Officer. Tandem parking is typical of parking 
for dwellings and there is sufficient space for vehicles to manoeuvre. Given the 
positive street design this courtyard of parking then allows, it is an acceptable 
solution in this instance.  
 

5.19 The overall density of development at 44 dwellings per hectare (dph) accords 
with the 35 to 45 dph parameter for this part of the site proposed by the outline 
permission with the density being inflated due to the requirement of higher 
density in the Northern Gateway and Central Core and Hamlet. Whilst public 
open space within the application site is limited to the square around the 
protected tree and a strip of open land on the western boundary, the wider 
provision of 17 percent open space across the Valley Park site needs to be 
considered rather than this site considered in isolation.  
 

5.20 The proposed layout is considered compliant with the SDC and Policies CP37, 
CP38 and CP44 of the LPP1. 
 

Page 45



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

 
5.21 

Scale 
Building heights reflect the parameters set at outline permission stage varying 
between 5.7m and 15m, and expectations of the SDC with two and a half, three 
and four storeys development along the eastern site frontage (the Northern 
Gateway and Central Core and Hamlets), with two and two and a half storey 
dwellings elsewhere reflecting the hierarchy of streets and character areas. The 
proposal complies with the SDC and Policy CP37 of the LPP1. 
  

 
5.22 

Access and Parking 
Policy DP16 of the LPP2 seeks to provide adequate provision for loading, 
unloading, circulation, servicing and vehicle turning and make provision for any 
improvements to highway infrastructure. Policy CP33 of the LPP1 seeks to 
promote sustainable travel and accessibility including minimising impacts on 
the local and strategic road networks. Policy CP35 of the LPP1 promotes the 
use of public transport, cycling and walking and to ensure adequate car parking 
is provided in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) parking 
standards. 
 

5.23 Access from the A4130 via a signalised junction was approved as part of the 
outline planning permission. Road hierarchies and widths were approved in 
consultation with OCC as part of the SDC. All roads meet the SDC road width 
requirements. Whilst OCC now requests some shared streets have a width of 
8.3m rather than 7.5m, this does not accord with the approved SDC. The 
applicant advises the street is 7.6m wide having been widened following a 
previous request by OCC. Officers note that in responding to applications 
seeking approval of the SDC, OCC had required this shared street type to be 
widened to 7.5m including a 1.5m wide service strip/margin. In responding to 
application P22/V2066/DIS OCC advised ““The other cross sections that 
needed updating were the ‘Shared Surface’ design (now on page 59). These 
have been amended and widened for future service / maintenance 
requirements and are now considered acceptable”. OCC’s request is contrary 
to the SDC and is not required for highway safety purposes and it is noted that 
OCC does not object but may not adopt this street type. Officers consider the 
street at 7.5m/7.6m wide benefits the scheme design creating enclosure, 
definition is street hierarchy and a design not dominated or arranged around 
car access.  
 

5.24 Internal roads are designed for traffic speeds of 20mph or less. Whilst OCC 
now seeks justification for 20m vision splays it had already (as has the 
applicant), provided the justification in its response to the July 2023 
amendments by explaining that “in this instance guidance in MfS needs to be 
considered, specifically Table 7.1.  Within this table where vehicle speeds are 
likely to vary between 15mph to 20mph a reduced visibility may be considered 
appropriate.  Due to the location of the junction shown, the no through streets it 
is serving, and the alignment of the main section of the street shown.  It is 
considered appropriate for a reduce 20m sightline to be accepted on this 
occasion”.  On this basis I can only conclude the 20m vision splay is justified, 
accords with MfS and is acceptable. Other than pavements and a cycle lane 
alongside the main street at the eastern edge of this application site, no cycle 
or footways are included in this application site but cycle and footway links are 

Page 46



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

required and secured as part of the outline planning permission which will 
ultimately link this site more conveniently to future on site facilities, Great 
Western Park and Didcot. In the meantime there are links to the cycle and 
footway beside the A4130. The main street will include a bus link and the 
proposal includes a bus stop. The proposal is considered compliant with 
Policies CP33 and CP35 of the LPP1 and policy DP16 of the LPP2 and the 
SDC. 
 

5.25 Car and cycle parking meets OCC standards as confirmed by the highway 
officer. Each dwelling and flat is allocated an electric vehicle charging point 
which exceeds the requirements of condition 41 of the outline planning 
permission. Consequently car and cycle parking meet the requirement of Policy 
CP35 of the LPP1.  
 

 
 
5.26 

Housing Mix 
Affordable Housing Mix 
A condition of the outline planning permission required a Housing Delivery 
Document (HDD) to be approved for the wider Valley Park site although the 
condition recognises the need for this Document to be flexible and it can be 
updated as part of reserved matters applications. A HDD was approved under 
application P22/V2338DIS and it has been updated as part of this application to 
reflect the fewer number of dwellings in this parcel following the submission of 
revised plans. Policy CP22 of the LPP1 requires a mix of dwelling types and 
sizes to meet the needs of current and future households. Policy CP24 of the 
LPP1 aims to provide 35 percent affordable housing which should be 
indistinguishable from the market dwellings and evenly distributed across the 
site. The S106 agreement for the outline permission requires a policy CP24 
complaint 35 percent affordable housing across the wider Valley Park site. The 
approved HDD recognises that some housing parcels will have fewer than 35 
percent affordable housing with the shortfall in those parcels made up in other 
housing parcels. In the case of this application, 35 percent affordable housing 
would be 60 dwellings whereas 59 affordable dwellings are proposed. The 
updated HDD submitted with this application still sets out the delivery of a 
Policy CP24 compliant requirement for affordable housing across the Valley 
Park site. The S106 agreement for the Valley Park site permits clusters up to a 
maximum of 15 dwellings. 
 

5.27 The affordable housing mix shown in the table below accords with the S106 
agreement for this development and is considered to accord with the HDD and 
Policies CP22 and CP24 of the LPP1: 
 

 1 bed flat 2 bed flat 2 bed 
house 

3 bed 
house  

4 bed 
house 

Affordable 
rent 

17 2 12 12 2 

Shared 
ownership 

0 0 3 11 0 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 47



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

5.28 The affordable housing is in clusters of 15 or fewer dwellings and evenly 
distributed over this application site. Furthermore, they are indistinguishable 
from market dwellings.  
 

 
5.29 

Market Housing Mix 
Policy CP22 of the LPP1 requires a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet the 
needs of current and future households. This should be in accordance with the 
council’s current Strategic Housing Market Assessment unless an alternative 
approach can be demonstrated to be more appropriate through the Housing 
Register or where proven to be necessary due to viability constraints. Across 
the Valley Park site the outline permission expects a SHMA compliant 
development. A comparison between the proposed market housing and SHMA 
expectation is shown in the table below: 
 

 1 bed 2 beds 3 beds 4+ beds 

Proposed 2 34 60 17 

SHMA 7 24 48 33 
 

 
5.30 

 
Whilst the market housing mix for this housing parcel is not compliant with the 
SHMA it provides a mix reflective of higher density and the design expectations 
for this part of the site. Across the wider Valley Park site the updated housing 
mix submitted with this application provides a SHMA and Policy CP22 
compliant mix of market housing that does not exceed 4,254 dwellings on the 
Valley Park site. 

 
 
5.31 

 
Residential Amenity 
Policies DP23 and DP24 of the LPP2 seek to protect the living conditions of 
residents. The adopted Joint Design Guide recommends distances between 
dwellings of 21m back to back, 10m to fronts and 12m back to side. There are 
no existing neighbouring dwellings and no occupants of existing dwellings are 
directly overlooked or overshadowed by the proposals. The dwellings are 
reasonably separated to prevent unreasonable overlooking and 
overshadowing. The number of dwellings has been reduced ensuring all 
dwellings have adequate garden sizes or flats have 5 sq m balconies as 
required by the SDC for the site and which reflect the Joint Design Guide 
expectations. Floor areas for the affordable dwellings accord with the 
requirements of the S106 agreement associated with the outline planning 
permission or the Nationally Described Space Standards as expected by policy 
DP2 of the LPP2. 
 

5.32 The submitted noise assessment concludes occupants of dwellings will not be 
adversely affected by noise including that from traffic using the A4130 subject 
to passive ventilation systems and double glazing providing 31dB and 25dB 
attenuation for those residential properties fronting the A4130 and northern 
plots along the spine road respectively and including two metre high walls on 
the eastern boundary of plot 19 and on the western boundaries of plots 16 and 
23. These measures can be required by condition and the proposal can 
therefore, comply with policies DP23 and DP24 of the LPP2. HIF1 is a scheme 
that does not benefit from planning permission and it needs to be designed to 
mitigate for its impacts on existing development and developments already 

Page 48



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

permitted such as Valley Park which benefits from an outline planning 
permission. It is not for this development to mitigate for schemes which have 
yet to be permitted. 
 

 
5.33 

Climate Change 
The council has declared a climate emergency and Policy CP40 of the LPP1 
encourages developers to incorporate climate change adaption and design 
measures. All dwellings include solar panels on their roofs and they are 
provided with electric vehicle charging points. The applicant’s planning 
statement advises that all dwellings will be provided with air source heat 
pumps. The majority of dwellings have windows within 30 degrees of south and 
all dwellings allow for natural ventilation. A fabric first approach to heat loss can 
be used. The Valley Park outline planning permission requires a series of 
measures for active travel including a network of cycle and footways, bus 
services and a range of facilities and services on site to make the development 
accessible and seeking to reduce reliance on private transport for journeys. The 
proposal is Policy CP40 compliant. 
 

 
5.34 

Biodiversity 
Policy CP46 of the LPP1 seeks to protect important ecological receptors 
(designated sites, protected species, priority habitats, etc.) and secure net 
gains for biodiversity. Where adverse impacts on important ecological receptors 
are likely, development must meet the criteria outlined under the policy to be 
acceptable. Net losses of biodiversity will not be supported. Policy DP30 of the 
LPP2 expects a 10m buffer to watercourses. 
 

5.35 The outline planning permission includes conditions aimed at enhancing 
biodiversity. As required by conditions 18 and 27 of the outline planning 
permission this application is supported by a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 
and Ecological Construction Management Plan. Both documents are 
considered acceptable and their mitigation measures need to be implemented 
in accordance with the conditions. The BEP proposes 110 bird boxes for swifts, 
swallows, martins, sparrows and starlings. In addition, bee bricks, insect ‘hotels’ 
and hedgehog ‘highways’ are proposed.   
 

5.36 
 

Condition 26 of the outline planning permission requires a 20m buffer free of 
built development beside Moor Ditch which flows along the western Valley Park 
site boundary. A 20m wide buffer is proposed except where a road linking the 
site to adjacent land (the North West Valley Park LPP1 housing allocation). As 
this road will be required in future and presently it needs to extend in to Moor 
Ditch buffer to allow for refuse vehicle turning, this exception is considered 
acceptable. Condition 26 also requires a 30m buffer adjacent to water vole 
colonies on the Moor Ditch. However, recent surveys have found no presence 
of water voles. 30m wide buffers can be achieved to the north and south of the 
site in case water voles do re-establish themselves. 
 

5.37 It is considered biodiversity enhancements can be delivered and the proposals 
do not encroach within 10m of a watercourse. As requested by the countryside 
officer, a condition can secure a barrier during construction works to separate 
the site from the Moor Ditch watercourse (the tree protection barrier proposed 

Page 49



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

is suitable). The proposal is compliant with Policies CP46 of the LPP1 and 
DP30 of the LPP2. 
 

 
5.38 

Drainage 
Policy CP42 of the LPP1 seeks to ensure that development provides 
appropriate measures for the management of surface water as an essential 
element of reducing future flood risk to both the site and its surroundings.  
 

5.39 The site is flood zone 1 and an appropriate site in terms of fluvial flooding for 
housing development. The outline planning permission is subject to conditions 
23, 24 and 25 requiring a detailed surface and foul water drainage scheme to 
be approved by this council and implemented. Approval of surface and foul 
water drainage details is subject to application P22/V2624/DIS and remains 
under consideration and is the most appropriate mechanism for considering the 
drainage arrangements. In respect of foul water disposal and capacity of foul 
water infrastructure, it is noted that Thames Water does not object.  
 

 Conditions 
5.40 In accordance with conditions 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 27 and 41 of the outline 

planning permission, this application provides acceptable details of the 
following for this phase of the Valley Park development: 

 A landscape works maintenance schedule; 

 Tree protection plan; 

 Hard and soft landscaping; 

 Noise impact and mitigation; 

 A Biodiversity Enhancement Plan 

 Ecological Construction Management Plan; and 

 Electric vehicle charging points. 
 

5.41 In so far as these details relate to this application site, a partial approval of 
these conditions can be given. 
 

 
6.0 CONCLUSION 
6.1 This application has been determined in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. This is considered a well-
designed development that results in no adverse harm. The proposal is 
considered development plan compliant as a whole and compliant with the 
Strategic Design Code for the Valley Park site and therefore, it is recommended 
that the reserved matters (internal access, appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale), are approved. 
 

 
 The following planning policies have been taken into account: 
  
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031: Part 1 – core policies: 

CP1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
CP2 - Cooperation on unmet housing need for Oxfordshire 
CP3 - Settlement hierarchy 
CP4 - Meeting our housing needs 

Page 50



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

CP5 – Housing supply ring fence 
CP7 – Providing supporting infrastructure and services 
CP15 - Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area 
CP17 - Delivery of Strategic Highway Improvements within the South-East Vale 
Sub-Area 
CP18 - Safeguarding of Land for Transport Schemes in the South East Vale 
Sub-Area 
CP22 – Housing mix 
CP23 – Housing density 
CP24 – Affordable housing 
CP26 - Accommodating current and future needs of the ageing population 
CP33 – Promoting sustainable transport and accessibility 
CP35 – Promoting public transport, cycling and walking 
CP36 – Electronic communications 
CP37 – Design and local distinctiveness 
CP38 – Design strategies for strategic and major development sites 
CP39 – The historic environment 
CP40 – Sustainable design and construction 
CP42 – Flood risk 
CP43 – Natural resources 
CP44 - Landscape 
CP45 – Green infrastructure 
CP46 – Conservation and improvement 
CP47 – Delivery and contingency 
 
A Regulation 10A review (five-year review) for Local Plan Part 1 (LPP1) has 
been completed. The review shows that five years on, LPP1 (together with 
LPP2) continues to provide a suitable framework for development in the Vale of 
White Horse that is in overall conformity with government policy. 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031: Part 2  
CP4a – Meeting our housing needs 
CP15A  -  Additional Site Allocations for South East Vale Sub-Area 
CP16b – Didcot Garden Town 
CP18a - Safeguarding of Land for Strategic Highway Improvements within the 
South-East Vale Sub-Area 
CP47A  -  Delivery and Contingency 
DP2 – Space standards 
DP11  -  Community Employment Plans 
DP16 – Access 
DP17 - Transport assessments and travel plans 
DP20 – Public art 
DP21 – External lighting 
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity 
DP24 – Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments 
DP25 – Noise pollution 
DP26 – Air quality 
DP27 – Land affected by contamination 
DP28 – Waste collection and recycling 
DP30 - Watercourses 

Page 51



Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 

DP33 – Open space 
DP36 – Heritage assets 
DP39 – Archaeology and scheduled monuments 
 
Adopted Guidance 
The Joint Design Guide 2022 
Developer Contributions – Delivering Infrastructure to Support Development 
SPD – June 2017 
Strategic Design Code for Valley Park  
 
Other Relevant Legislation and Guidance 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan 
Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation  
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 
Human Rights Act 1998 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 
Case Officer – Adrian Butler 
Email – adrian.butler@southandvale.gov.uk 
Tel – (01235) 422600 
 

 

Page 52



Ward Bdy

JU
BI

LE
E 

AV
EN

UE

88

El Sub Sta

D
ra

in

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

99

MP

PARK DRIVE

66.5m

60.9m

71

80

86

69

Tr
ac

k

87

INNOVATION DRIVE

92

97

85

Water

Ra
m

p

BA
C

KH
IL

L 
LA

N
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

Drain

Def

A 34

ED & Ward Bdy

Dr
ain

Lay-by

Foot Bridge

Drain

Ward Bdy

Track

FB

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

ED
 B

dy

C
O

W
 L

AN
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

Drain

Track

CS

CS

12
6

187 to 188

El

180

117

Sub

137

BROOK DRIVE

D
ra

in

Post

184

ED
 B

dy

174

Moor Ditch

C
S

Signal Gantry

Signal Gantry

Hopper

ESS

O
LY

M
PI

C 
AV

EN
UE

ED & Ward Bdy

182

120f

CD

D
ef

56.0m

57.4m

95

56.5m

91

Def

119f

Pond

M
ILTO

N
 R

O
AD

119c

55.9m

12
1

El

173

185

12
7

Tank

New Farm

Education Centre

El Sub Sta

154

C
O

W
 L

AN
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

11 to 14

Mast

D
ra

in

136

Pond

Sta

Def

CS

OLYMPIC AVENUE

El Sub Sta

SU
TT

O
N 

CO
UR

TE
NA

Y 
RO

AD

Def

Def

Sta

W
ard Bdy

Sta

Sub Sta

CS

15 to 18

Nature Study Reserve

120c

Sutton Courtney

El

Tanks

180

Sub

Drain

El Sub Sta

9 to 10

BR
O

O
K D

R
IVE

5 
to

 8

183

12
5

PARK DRIVE

D
ra

in

Tank

MEADOW LANE

El Sub

Estate

170

1 
to

 4

Drain

23 to 26

160

Water

A 4130

Sta

EA
ST

ER
N

 A
VE

N
U

E

115

Tank Def

El Sub

110 to 114

Milton Park

El Sub Sta

Environmental

153

10
0

57.2m

MP 55.25

MP 55

106

Water

90

19 to 22

130

56.4m

163

BR
O

O
K 

D
R

IV
E

El

120d

15
012

4

120a

175

176

Milton Park Estate
Sub Sta

15
2

161

15
1

119a

12
2

119d

D
ra

in

Drain

(CEGB)

Track

Reserve

A 4130

CD

56.5m

Drain

Nature Study

Pond

Tanks

Tanks

Lake

MP 54.75

56.3m

OLD MILTON ROAD

Drain

FB

Manor
Farm Tr

ac
k

ETLs

11

1 3

40

22

38

9

1

12

65

13

O
RC

HA
RD

 W
AY

Harwell Primary School

43

50

100

14

78
32

24a

52

32

13

17

27

67

80

52

31

15
19

39

2

21

Court

37

47

102

40

W
ESTFIELD

9

2

108

45

7

El Sub Sta

5

98

El Sub Sta

1

7

24

Tennis

THE STYLES

W
ES

TF
IE

LD
Pa

th

19

Ward Bdy

67

JU
BI

LE
E 

AV
EN

UE

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Drain

D
ra

in

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

99

MP

PARK DRIVE

66.5m

60.9m

80

86

69

Tr
ac

k

87

INNOVATION DRIVE

57.4m

92

97

85

Water

Ra
m

p

BA
C

KH
IL

L 
LA

N
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

Drain

Overton

Cottage

The

Gdns

House

Meadows

The

Wellshead

Farm

Clonnara

Holywell

23

Cottage

Path

Milestones

Ev
en

lo
de

Dormers

Appletreewick

Field

BR
O

AD
W

AY

1

Gate

The Barn

G
re

en
sl

ee
ve

s

View

Chimneys

Caders

GP

Croft

Cottage

Silverdown

Anglo-Saxon

2

Holloway

Co
tta

ge

Bakers

Cottage

Rise

Riding School

R
id

ge

Nurses

9

Post

Princes

Busby

29

Timbers

Sunnyside
Englefield

Post

CHILLBROOK

12

A 417

Old

34

CL
O

SE

The Old

Old Stores

Bonny

Gilberts Cott

Corner

Clara

Pine
Croft

Cottage

Hou
se

78.3m

Abbey

Cott

Cottage

Downs Croft

Craig

End

El Sub Sta

TH
E 

PA
R

K

Bank

H
O

LLO
W

AY

Croft Orchard

89.6m

St
on

y

89.2m

Hall

Manor Farm

The

Oakleigh

W
in

dr
us

h

Wayside

Ch
eq

ue
rs

76.9m

7

Thre
e

Burial Ground

10

MS

La Digue
Broadway

Co
rn

er
wa

ys

TH
E

Cottage

Cottage

Nottingham

33

Tigin Barn

Hayloft

Cyprus

Holly

(restored)

Charrington

The

D
O

W
N

S

Arosa

Post

Tibberton

En
d

Cross

17

Folly

Cross

76.6m

Chestnut Rise

Little

Thatched

Wells Head

W
indaes

Thatch

WELLSHEAD LANE

Cottages

Track

Way
s

Orchard

7

House

Gable

Post

Rosemead

East Field

21

Sungrove

4

Acre

81.4m

Wood

77.4m

Cottage

Po
rlo

ck

12

Holloway

READING

Long

Hi
llc

re
st

Allot

Rooftops

Ty Gwyn

The

1

Crabtree

East

C
ot

ta
ge

Bankside

B 4493

Jabrin

Tr
ac

k

BROADW
AY CLOSE

Elm

Park

79.2m

LB

17

FB

Chequers

Broadway

1

Linden

8

House

Cottage

ROAD

The

Pond
Willowbrook

Co
rn

 P
op

pi
es

1

Sha
nd

on

Cottage

Rise

Fee

28

Warwick

Cottage

The

89.6m

7

Potters

White Hart

R
iv

er
s

BROOKSID
E

13

12a

White

House

Cottage

School

12

Bon

Locktons Barn

ROAD

Wellow

Sub Sta

Close Barn

Gynt

2

Townsend

2

House

Five

13

Killarney

Farmhouse

Bu
rr

3

Copper

Hall

Homeleigh

et

15

77
.5

m

Lo
dg

e

Poppies

Burr

Sunnydown

77.2m

Hou
se

20

Barn

Barn

JENNINGS

Masts

Farmhouse

Stonewall House

Yew Tree

Fir Tree

32

5

Bungalow

G
ro

ve The New Bungalow

Tudor

Sub Sta

House

26

Cottage

Harwell

Chapel

DR
EW

IT
TS

 C
OR

NE
R

2

19

GATE

2

2

The Court

28

Campanile

Drain

Cottage

Ch
er

ry
 T

re
e 

Co
ur

t

LANE

9

Meum

Kilnwood

LANE

Th
e

Cott

Lo
rb

ria

1

Cottage

Co
tta

ge

House

19

6

15

Va
lle

tta

6

19

Princes

75.4m

Bu
ng

al
ow

s

Stone

52a

CLE
AV

E

Peartree

Alamo

Memorial

House

Br
oo

k H
ou

se

M
S

Pollards

7

H
ou

se

W
ay

Ea
rly

The

7

The Studio

Broad Acre

34

Cottage

1

Hi
ll O

rc
ha

rd

Brewhouse

Cottage

3

Harvest

Cott

6

Dilkhusa

Brimbles

Fe
rn

Hi
llv

ie
w

30

1

THE DRIFTWAY (Track)

Tuum

Farm

(Inn)

The

Corners

1

Nook

6

33

Beeches

Almshouses

B 
44

93

8

Cottage

Peer

11a
House

1

Dell

Crossfields

Denbigh

COW
 LA

NE

Pomander

6

Brook Farm

Cherry

Bayllols

78.8m

House

Greensward

74

Box Cottage

GP

54

Teesdale

2

79.0m

5

10a

Beech House

2a

CHURCH

Avon

Cottages

Ch
ilb

ro
ok

White

Malt House

The

Ly
nc

om
be

Westfield

El

1

Rill

Harrow

Croft

4

Cleve

Pagebank

31

16

Th
e

Ba
rn

12b

View

New House

5

34

Bl
en

he
im

Pond

Dimora

House

Devon

21

3

16

A 34

6

Fairoak

Be
rry

m
ea

d

View

Allotment

Li
ttl

e

1

Adnams Farmhouse

10

30

78.9m

Woodlands

The

Rosebrook

Capel

1

32

Warburton

34a

6

Church

Bishop's Manor Farm

1

2

Corser House

THE

Matthew's
Belga

2

MANOR

The Old
House

Cherry Trees

R
os

e 
D

en
e

Tu
do

r O
rc

ha
rd

Linden

House

Colwyn

Cottage

Ke
rit

h

Touchwood

Manor

1

W
hi

te

Malth
ouse

 Barn

2

DIDCOT ROAD

The

1

En
fin

Cottage

Church

El

Willow Tree

Inglenook

7

Ke
ve

ve

Lane

Cobwebs

Farm

8

Terrace

The

Bayliss House

Tr
es

co
w

e

Rectory

Brookside

War Meml

9

Nursing

House

Ol
d 

Sc
ho

ol

Byways

Pe
m

br
oo

k

Abri

The Hudsons

Lodge

4

Cottage

Ba
rn

Burr Court

Claro House

Sh
im

na

El Sub Sta

Pi
lla

r

Works

1

Lo
ng

The

Kings

Karmalu

LB

11

24

4

Cottage

16

1

Gables

Ro
os

te
rs

St

Old

22

Wren

56

Bumble

Sewage

She
lte

r

BURR STREET

1

Th
e 

Ki
ck

in
g 

Do
nk

ey

10

D
ev

on
ia

Erica

12

M
el

lif
ra

y

H
EN

G
EST

Ly
nw

oo
d

Hou
se

Cott

March

Th
e 

De
ll

Kings

G
ab

le
s

Evergreen

House

18

Manor

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

KINGS

Je
na

do
n

21

38

78.6m

BA
RROW Close

LANE

Porkerris

78
.1

m

78
.3m

Orchard

SCHOOL

W
yc

hw
oo

d

Brook

12

HI
G

H 
ST

RE
ET

B 4493

M
ar

go

Blenheim

8

Villa

1

Bo
w

la
nd

Barn

1

CROFT

W
es

t

Winnats

TC
B

St
on

ed
en

e

10

11

17

House

Ranger

Sideways

Fairlawn

1

12

GAVESTON

M
ai

n

9

4

High Drive

Cottage

M
on

tro
se

Ca
rm

ar
th

en
 H

o

Freelyn

18

75.0m

49

El

Dr
om

or
e

36

At
 L

as
t

Bakery

24

9

House

Montpellier

Farm Barn

Br
yn

The

Rose

Chapel

Blenheim

26

Rickstone

Darnaway

33

Sunnymede

El Sub Sta

14

Winterbrook

Little

Tarik

Old

School House

W
el

lo
w

Severn

12a

M
id

dl
e

4

3

C
ar

ita

House

House

35

Ta
lb

ot
s

GROVE ROAD

Mulberry

15

5

4

Ambe
rly

1

Cartref

Walnut

Adnams

13

Ho
lly

br
oo

k

39

Ho
us

e

2

LA
NE

GREEN

Willowcroft

Adnams 3

Autumn House

4

Barn

H
er

on

3

Sub Sta

Bu
ng

al
ow

2

4

Track

Moon

Co
tta

ge

16

Ki
ng

s

1

Barrow Park

BLENHEIM HILL

Ba
rn

3

Orchard House

Stable

W
ee

fre
e

Clea
ve

Cemetery

11

Pa
th

to

Locktons

8

Y-Worry

Th
is

tle
do

m
e

Kelbrooke

25

LINDEN GATE

Rose Cottage

House

Blenheim

Ba
llu

t

Highside

Ho
us

e

LO
D

ER
 R

O
AD

Greenacre

Way

The

Garage

Farm

10

Tree

Roches

Brewery

8

Se
ve

nt
ee

n

O
ve

r

Pillar

El Sub Sta

Dellands

House

Ingleside

Brook

1

76

House

Melford

Fernhurst

Home

TH
E

Cottage

TO
W

NS
EN

D

House

The Homestead

Barley Ho

11

La
m

aw
a

2

(Telecommunication)

Gardens

20

Hadley

Ja
sm

in
e

House

Church

29

2

Coach

Lodge

House

Fir
br

oo
k

24

Cornerways

Cherry Barns

25

71.8m

Limetree

Cottage

Ly
nc

om
be

Lavenda

El
m

w
at

er

Cottage

15

Id
un

no

BARRO
W

 RO
AD

21

The Old

(Caravan Site)

1

St
on

eb
en

ch

8

26

40

LANE

Po
nd

4

Rose Cottage

Cottage

7

Def

A 34

ED & Ward Bdy

Dr
ain

Lay-by

Foot Bridge

Path (um
)

Drain

Ward Bdy

Track

FB

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

ED
 B

dy

Lay-by

C
O

W
 L

AN
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

Drain

Track

CS

A 34

CS

12
6

187 to 188

180

Sub

137

Dr
ai

n

Post

184

ED
 B

dy

174

Moor Ditch

C
S

Signal Gantry

Signal Gantry

Hopper

O
LY

M
PI

C 
AV

EN
UE

ED & Ward Bdy

182

CD

D
ef

56.0m

57.4m

95

56.5m

91

Def

Pond

M
ILTO

N
 R

O
AD

55.9m

12
1

El

173

185

12
7

Tank

New Farm

Education Centre

El Sub Sta

C
O

W
 L

AN
E 

(T
ra

ck
)

11 to 14

Mast

D
ra

in

136

Pond

Sta

Def

CS

OLYMPIC AVENUE

El Sub Sta

SU
TT

O
N 

CO
UR

TE
NA

Y 
RO

AD

Def

Def

Sta

W
ard Bdy

Sta

C
S

15 to 18

Nature Study Reserve

Sutton Courtney

El

Tanks

180

Sub

Drain

El Sub Sta

9 to 10

BR
O

O
K D

R
IVE

5 
to

 8

183

12
5

PARK DRIVE

D
ra

in

Tank

MEADOW LANE

El Sub

Estate

170

1 
to

 4

Drain

23 to 26

160

Water

A 4130

Sta

EA
ST

ER
N

 A
VE

N
U

E

115

Tank Def

El Sub

110 to 114

Milton Park

El Sub Sta

Environmental

153

10
0

57.2m

MP 55.25

MP 55

106

Water

90

19 to 22

130

56.4m

A 
34

Und

Def

Drain

THE DRIFTWAY (Track)

Drain

Drain

Dr
ain

Foot Bridge

CP 
& 

ED
 B

dy

West Hagbourne Field

A 417

Drain

De
f

Drain

SD

Drain

1.5
2m

 Tk H

Drain

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Pond

SD

U
nd

Elmslea

Hillview

Pond

Th
e 

Fi
rs

Track

Eunice

Track

Floradene
Jasmin

A 34

Bethella

Be
df

or
d 

Lo
dg

e

Track

80.6m

80.6m

Zulu Farm

Def

Fieldside

Downlands

DIDCOT ROAD

Meadow View

Alma

B 4493

Tr
ac

k

RH

LB

Drai
n

Def

Arborfield

Yewsley

CP & ED Bdy

Drain

High Elms

1.52m RH

Tangley

Longreach

1.52m RH

Zulu Farm

80.6m

Stone

Drain

Down

80.0m

Farm

Sunny Side

MS 7

Cottage

Track

Cottage

Am
bl

es
id

e

Barn

1.5
2m

 R
H

WANTAGE ROAD

10

23

32

22
 to

 3
2

2

SANDPIPER WALK

1

SIR FRANK W
ILLIAM

S AVENUE

1

6

15

Def

14

12

Balancing Pond

21

8

22

2

40
 to

 5
2

2

4

5

2

15

11

1

7

2

5

JU
NIPER W

AY

17

DA
N 

RE
AD

 P
AR

AD
E

JA
CK

DA
W

 R
OAD

1.2
2m

 R
H

27

MAPLE
 ROAD

28

2

12

1

ESS

44

20

26

19

18

OAK HILL LANE

28

1.22m
 R

H

PE
AC

O
CK

 M
EW

S

D
rain

Ps

20

7

2 to 18

54
 to

 6
8

ASH W
AY

4

1

38

65

Def

APPLE DOWN

11

45

1 to 17

23

30

63

18

Path (um)

8

11

12

D
ra

in

PAR
TR

ID
G

E C
LO

SE

10

11

30

2

15

3

2

Path (u
m)

1
5

Posts

1.
22

m
 R

H

1

24

25

ASH W
AY

2

2

12

57

1

Drain

57

GREENFINCH ROAD

15

9

Drain

20

1

Ps

6

9

CP & ED Bdy

2

14

Ps

DAMSON DRIVE

22

1

18

34

2

15

16

7

7

2

6

6

1522

SD

1.22m RH

19

Didcot Field

10

11

1

4

HAWTHORN PLACE

2

41

Drain

2

20

19

BLACKTHORN ROAD

LI
M

E 
W

AL
K

12

1

Drai
n

10

32

Track

WALNUT LANE

ESS

6

14

MP 54.5

(CEGB)

Bridge

Tank

SL

Slurry Lagoons

D
rain

Track

SLs

Tank

Reserve

MP 54.25

MILTON ROAD

SL

A 4130

Cooling Towers

SLsWeighbridges

SLs

Moor Ditch

CD

56.5m

D
ra

in

FB

C
onveyor

FB

Tk

56.1m

Drain

Nature Study

C
P 

& 
ED

 B
dy

SL

Hopper

FB

SL

Conveyor

Ponds

56.4m

Pond

D
rain

MEADOW LANE (Track)

Tanks

ED & Ward Bdy

L Twr

Def

D
ef

Weighbridges

SL

Foot

Tanks

Lake

MP 54.75

Con
ve

yo
r

Didcot Power Station

D
rain

L Twr

Moor Ditch

Balancing

56.3m

56.6m

C
D

SD

OLD MILTON ROAD

Tank

Tanks

Drain

L Twr

35

Und

22

23

20

178

1

26

B 4493

176

80.3m

13

Pond

FF

D
ra

in

69

28

RO
W

AN
 C

LO
SE

2

28

2

Drain

16

55

16

15

NIGHTINGALE WAY

4

29

51

2

RO
O

KE
RY

 C
O

UR
T

Sub

1

8

2

19

El

Track

RED KITE WAY

47

11

1

17

1

3

4

52

45

24

3

6 17

14

15

16

81.3m

DUNNOCK END

9

Ps

17 14

14

14

17

1

5

KI
N

G
FI

SH
ER

 D
R

IV
E

17

27

TH
E 

AV
EN

UE

16

22

24

18

8

1

27 to 41

31

SW
AN

 M
EW

S
5

6

23

Ps

Sta

39

Con
ve

yo
r

L Twr

SLs

A 4130

SLs

C
onduit

SLs

SLs

FB

FB

Conduit

FB

Allot

Pavilion

85.6m

1
Mayfield

Shelter

Lassen
Souci

Leigh

Applegarth

Ch
er

ry

Su
nn

yd
en

e

Droke

Po
m

er
oy

Haven

2

Bowling

Sans

Gdns

Sp
rin

gfi
eld

s

Blossom Hill

Yearlings

Du
na

ve
rty

7

12

Ambe
rw

oo
d

Russets

Glen

M
illb

ur
n

Haltings

Vineland

81.4m

Playground

1

WANTAGE ROAD

Pentherton

Homeleigh

20

Orchard

Cherrydene

The Orchard

Pavilion

Recreation Ground

Cr
of

t

View

Brethick

8 83.6m

READING ROAD

La
m

or
na

New

Club

B 4493

Green

TYR
R

ELLS C
LO

SE

Tr
ac

k

0m 100m 200m

150m 250m 250m

A Red line application boundary revised to exclude bus stop
on eastern side of spine road. 11.07.23 agtg

Persimmon Homes Wessex. All rights reserved.
This drawing is the copyright of Persimmon Homes Developments Ltd. and has been produced for planning
proposes only. Such drawings can be scaled but are not be used for construction or sales documents.

DRAWING TITLE

DWG NO. REV.

DRAWN CHECKED DATE

REVISIONS DATE BY

SCALE

S:\Wessex\Technical\Site Files\201 - P1 Valley Park, Didcot\3 Active Drawings\Design\Reserved Matters\02 CAD\03 Drawings\201.100 rev - Site Location Plan.dwg

Persimmon Homes (Wessex)
Verona House, Tetbury Hill
Malmesbury, Wiltshire. SN16 9JR

Tel: 01666 824721
Fax: 01666 826152

www.persimmonhomes.com

DRAWING STATUS

PLANNING

P1 - VALLEY PARK, DIDCOT

AR TE MAR '23 1:2500@A1

201.100 A

SITE LOCATION PLAN
P1 - VALLEY PARK, DIDCOT

ZOOMED OUT TO SCALE 1:10000

Appendix 1

Page 53



I 

37 1' 
' 
: ' 36 ' ' ,' 35 I 

95 I ' 
I 96 

141 

140 

138 137 

-- '¥•�¥-��- -·-· .. -:.�0�' 
-. . . � 

10m 30m 50m 

Om 20m 40m 

-

97 

' 
;-----� 
i ,� 

134 / 133

' 
! 

\\ ';:, 
-' '' 

r✓r�---: 
I ' J 

I• ; i 
I I 

' 

f 
I ' 
IV· 
/ 

I 

I 
I 

t
I 

I 

f 
P46 

99 
100 101 

r-----l f 
131 f 1 --�~-�-..,.-L 

J 130 i' :' "<--129 ,' 128 

153

159

I 
102 I 

I 
--;----1 . ._,_ : I

127 I 

--.;k� 

�>:.;�1?��i� 
·---�-\,. 

. -'. __ --� 

.,. 

103 i ' ' 

123 

', 
'·,

i
_ ·,

'. 

\, "' 
" ,,= -. .. ••.• · ·, 

-�--
, J."l's3., 76 
�- ·, -'·:::.:.:.::.:,:.
- ' 77 

\,'fo_;p -=�-
- 78 

:����-;. 

�- ,,jA 
"-i..,-: ... 

,i', .. .,.,-.�-'.}:.P, 

70 

S:\Wessex\Technical\Site Files\201 - P1 Valley Park, Didcot\3 Active Drawings\Design\Reserved Matters\02 CAD\03 Drawings\201. 101 rev C Planning Layout.dwg 

\ \' ' 

·-.....:\,,
\ '\\ '· 

\\ 
\\ 
\\

\ 
\ 

I 

k 

i 

\ 
\ \ ' \

\ 
I 

'\ \ \ 
\ 
\ 

\ \ 
I ', . ' . ' ' 

I I
I I
I 
I I 
I I 

,I 
l 

; 
I I
I I
I I I
I
I 
I 

I 
• 
I 

I I 

l ! I I 
! I 
! I j : f

//�-,/ I t 
! I 

/// ' '" 

--------------------

I 

D Apartment D 2 Bed 9 
E Apartment E 2 Bed 4 
F Apartment F 2 Bed l 
FOG 1 FOG 1 2 Bed 1 
FOG2 FOG 2 2 Bed 1 

FOG4 2 Bed 1 
FOG 5 2 Bed l 
Haldon 2 Bed Semi 8 
Halford 2 Bed Semi 4 

Danbury 3 Bed Semi 2 

Sherwood 3 Bed Det l 
Sn Steventon 3 Bed Ter 1 
Bw Barnwood 3 Bed Det 9 
Ch Charnwood 3 Bed Det 7 
Sa Saunton 3 Bed Semi Ter 8 
51 Saunton+ 3 Bed Semi Ter 6 
An An f Ashdown 3 Bed Semi Ter 21 
AnC Ashdown Cnr 3 Bed SemijTer l 
Wv Waverly 4 Bed Semi 4 

WvCnr Waverl Cnr 4 Bed Semi 2 

Gr Gr-eene 2.5 Storey 4 Bed Det 4 
Bt Brampton 2 Storey 4 Bed Det 5 

St Stirling 2.5 Storey 4 Bed Semi 
M Mosi;: 2..5 Storey 4 Bed Semi 

Apartment B 3 Storey 6 
Apartment C 3 Storey 1 Bed 6 
FOG 1 2 Bed 
FOG 3 2 Store 2 Bed 

2 Bed 2 

2 Bed Semi/Ter 10 
Rendlesham 3 Bed Semi/Ter 6 
Dee wood 2 Store 3 Bed Semi Ter 
Saunton + 3 Bed Semi Ter 2 

Ashdown 3 Sto1e 3 Bed Semi Ter 2 
Ashdown Cnr 3 Store 3 Bed Semi Ter 
Ennerdale 4 Bed Semi/Ter 2 

45 

Shared ownership - G'een 

Ba Banbu 
Dee Oeepdale Cnr 
An Ashdown 
AnC Ashdown Cnr 

Key 

D 

• 

• 

19 

P019 

G019 

V 

2 Storey 2 Bed SemijTer 
2 Storey 3 Bed Semi/Ter 
3 Storey 3 Bed Semi/Ter 
3 Storey 3 Bed Semi/Ter 

Application Boundary 

1.8m High Closeboard Fence 

1.Sm High Closeboard Fence
with 300mm trellis vision panel 

1.8m High Panel Fence 

Black metal railings on brick plinths 0/A 
lm High with 1.2m High Brick Piers 

lm High Metal Black Railings 
with 1.2m Brick Piers 

lm High Metal Black Railings 

1.0m High Bin Screen Wall with Piers 

1.Sm High Screen Wall 

2m High Screen Wall (Acoustics) 

1.8m High Timber Close Board Gate 

Bollards 

Street Light 

Block Paving 

Affordable Housing - Rented 

Affordable Housing - Shared Ownership 

Bin Collection Point 

Waste Storage Point 

Plot Number 

Parking Plot Number 

Garage Plot Number 

Visitor Parking 

Utility Door into Garage 

Soft Landscape Proposals 
••fa, •·,·1 •·,ae, .. """ls :,·a ·.,;,-,,h, e •Hs 

Proposed tree planting within P.O.S. 
outside R.M. application site area 

Existing Retained Trees & Hedgerows 

C Walling extended to side/ recessed parking areas to 
plots 12, 3 8, 40/41, 43/48 123 -125, 140/141-144, 153 
& 154-156. Boundary frontage enclosure to dwellings 
fronting future access link road revised to railings. 

B 
A 

Parking spaces renumbered to plots 46/47. 
Bus stops moved and visitor parking space moved to suit 
Garden sizes increased to ensure garden sizes are 
policy compliant with a loss of 7 units. Fogs and 
Carports adjusted to ensure garden sizes are policy 
compliant. Shared drives increased to 7.6m wide. 
Electric Heating and solar required - Sub Station 
added. Affordable homes mix amended and some 
repositioned. 2 bed Rented flats to Block 2 and 3, 
amended to 1 beds. Adjustment of roads & houses to 
ensure all back to back distances of 21m is achieved. 
Verge to East/ West Spine Road and southern access 
road repositioned out of Vis. Splays so to ensure 
maximum Street trees gained. Boundary walling added 
to prominent boundaries to public domain & parking 
courts. 

REVISIONS 

15.08.23 
01.08.23 

05.07.23 

3 
1 
5 
5 

agtg 
AR 

TE/agtg 

1 500@A1 

201.100 C 

DRAWING TITLE 

PLANNING LAYOUT 

PHASE 1 -VALLEY PARK, DIDCOT 

DRAWING STATUS 

PLANNING 

Persimmon Homes Wessex. All rights reserved 
This drawing is the copyright of Persimmon Homes Developments Ltd. and has been produced for planning 
proposes only. Such drav.ings can be scaled but are not be used for construction or sales documents 

Appendix 2

Page 54



1 
 

Appendix 3 – Application P23/V0667/RM – Planning Committee – 27 September 2023 
 

 
 

P
age 55



2 
 

 

 

              

P
age 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 P23/V1093/HH - 39 Wootton Village, Boars Hill, Oxford, OX1 5HP
	Appendix 1
	Site Plan Existing drwgno 544-PL02
	Sheets and Views
	544-PL02 Existing Site Plan A1


	Site Plan Proposed drwgno 544-PL03
	Sheets and Views
	544-PL03 Proposed Site Plan A1


	Visability Splays


	8 P23/V0667/RM - Parcel 1P, Land to the west of Great Western Park (Valley Park), Didcot
	Appendices 1-3
	Appendix 1 - Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	(A1P)


	Appendix 2 - Planning Layout
	Appendix 3



